BOARD’S REPORT

To,
THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 22° Annual Report of the Company, together with the Audited
Financial Statements of M/s Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited (‘the Company"), for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024,

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Key highlights of the Financial Performance for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 together with
comparative statements for the FY ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:

(Amount in INR Millions)
Particulars 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023
Revenue from Operations 519.44 608.31
Other Income 56.17 37.75
Total Income 575.61 646.06
Less: Total Expenditure 585.07 584.34
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (97.04) 61.72
Less: Tax expense (24.07) 16.62
Profit (Loss) after Tax for the year (72.97) 45.10
from continuing operations
Profit (Loss) after Tax for the year (2.28) (5.22)
from discontinued operations
Profit (Loss) for the year (75.25) 39.88

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, total revenue of the Company from business operations is INR
519.44 million as against the revenue for the previous year which was INR 608.31 million. During the year
under review, your Company has incurred loss afler tax of INR 75.25 million as against profit of INR 39.88
million in the previous year.

The Company is continuously reviewing its business strategy according to the present market conditions and
further steps are being taken in the direction of consolidation and optimization of the revenues and operations.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business.
TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, the Company has transferred Rs. 536.52 Million to retained earnings and
Rs. 37.81 Million to general reserve.

Further, the closing balance of retained earnings as at March 31, 2024 afier all appropriation and adjustments
was Rs. 461,64 Million.
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DIVIDEND
Your Directors do not recommend any Dividend for the FY 2023-24.
SHARE CAPITAL

The paid-up capital of the Company is INR 4,00,00,000 /- (INR Four Crore Only) comprising 40,00,000 (Forty
Lakh) equity shares of face value of INR. 10/- (Ten) each.

There has been no change in the paid-up share capital of the Company during the financial year 2023-24.
HOLDING COMPANY

During the year under review, Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited (“MAITPA") acquired 100% shares
in the Company on August 25, 2023, and hence MAITPA is the Holding Company pursuant to Section 2(46) of
the Companies Act, 2013, with effect from the said date.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED IN BETWEEN MARCH 31, 2024 TILL DATE OF THIS
REPORT

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates and the date of this report.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY OFFICIALS OF THE COMPANY

During the year under review, there has been a change in the constitution of Board of Directors and Key Officials
which are as follows:

(i) Dr. Naresh Trehan, Ms. Nitasha Nanda and Mr. Prabodh Chander resigned as Directors w.c.f. August 25,
2023,

(i)  Dr. Vijay Sankaran, Mr. Nikhil Chopra and Mr. Himanshu Rastogi were appointed as Non- Executive
Additional Directors on August 25, 2023 and were regularized as Directors in the AGM held on
September 22, 2023,

(iii) Change in designation of Mr. Pawan Kumar Bhalla from Managing Director to Whole-Time Director
w.e.f September 01, 2023,

(iv) Ms. Deepa Bansal was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 06® December 2024,

As on March 31, 2024, the details of Directors and Key Officials of the Company is as below:
(i) Mr. Pawan Kumar Bhalla, Whole-Time Director (DIN: 00312478)

(ii) Dr. Vijay Sankaran, Director (DIN: 10051238)

(iii) Mr. Nikhil Chopra, Director (DIN: 0641254)

(iv) Mr. Himanshu Rastogi, Director (DIN: 08700476)

(v) Ms. Deepa Bansal, Company Secretary
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DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION & RE-APPOINTMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Pawan Kumar Bhalla (DIN: 00312478) Whole-time
Director, shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, seeks
re-appointment as Director in the Company. Your Board recommends re-appointment of Mr. Pawan Kumar
Bhalla at the ensuing 22™ Annual General Meeting of the Company.

BOARD & COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Board of Directors met 9 (Nine) times during the FY 2023-24 on the following dates:

June 15, 2023

June 28, 2023

July 27, 2023
August 25, 2023
August 30, 2023
November 08, 2023
December 06, 2023
February 12, 2024
March 28, 2024

MO Y B bk e

The intervening gap between the Board Meetings was within the limits prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under.

Further, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met once i.e., on February 12, 2024 during the said

financial year,

The details of Board Meetings are as follows:

‘Mr. Himanshu Rastogi |

Director

Name of the Director Category Number of Board| Number of | Whether attended
Meetings entitled Board Meetings | last AGM held on
to attend during |attended during | September 22, 2023
the FY 2023-24 | the FY 2023-24
"Dr. Naresh Trehan | " Director 4 4 No ]
Ms. Nitasha Nanda |  Director | 4 4 No
Mr. Prabodh Chander Director 4 4 ~ No
Mr. Pawan Kumar Bhalla Whole-time Director 9 T “Yes
E—— =1
Dr. Vijay Sankaran Director 5 5 Yes
Mr. Nikhil Chopra Director | 5 [~ s~ Yes |
— NS 4
5 ] Yes




The details of CSR Meeting is as follows:

Name of the Member _Cntegory | Number of CSR | Number of CSR | Whether attended
Committee Meeting Committee last AGM held on
entitled to attend [Meeting attended| September 22, 2023
during the FY 2023- | during the FY
- 24 2023-24

Dr. Vijay Sankaran Chairman L 1 1 l Yes

Mr. Pawan Kumar Bhalla] Member | | 1 | Yes

Mr. Himanshu Rastogi Member [ 1 1 | Yes

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your Directors, pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to
Directors’ responsibility statement, confirm that:

a) In preparation of the anmal accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along
with proper explanations relating to material departures;

b)

The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for

that period;
c)

The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records

in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)
€)

The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable

laws and had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls were adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During
the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation

were observed.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on February
12, 2024, have appointed M/s. Gyaneshwar Sahai & Associates, a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries for
conducting secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24.

The Secretarial Audit report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark and is annexed

herewith as Annexure - I to this report.
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the provisions of applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) during the financial year under review.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to establishment of Vigil Mechanism
is not applicable to the Company.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

Prior to acquisition, M/s Adeesh Mehra & Co. was appointed as the Internal Auditors of the Company.
Post-acquisition, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s. PricewaterhouseCoopers Services LLP as Internal
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2023-24.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Dhawan & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No. 009813N), were re-appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years from the conclusion of 17" Annual General Meeting
till the conclusion of 22" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2024,

EXPLANATION REGARDING QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION, ADVERSE REMARK OR
DISCLAIMER IN AUDITORS REPORT

There have been no qualifications, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Statutory Auditors in
their report.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF
SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL
GOVERNMENT

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under the second proviso of
Section 143(12) of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time being in
force).

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return in Form MGT-7 has been uploaded
on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.rakshatpa.com.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered into during the financial year were on an arm'’s length basis and in the
ordinary course of business and there were no ‘material’ contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s
length basis and thus disclosure in form AOC-2 is not required.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS & OUTGO

Even though the operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the Management has been highly conscious
of the importance of conservation of energy and technology absorption at all operational levels and efforts are
made in this direction on a continuous basis.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars FY 2023-24 | FY 2022-23

Foreign Exchange Earnings Nil o Nil |

Foreign Exchange Expenditure Nil Ny |
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company, at group level, has implemented a Risk Management Policy for taking informed decisions about
the internal and external risks. Further, the Risk Management policy helps the Company in identifying potential
risks, followed by robust analysis, evaluation of such risks, and to develop an effective risk mitigation action
plan.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has neither given any loans or guarantees nor provided Securities during the year under review,
The details of investments are provided in the notes to the financial statements.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS

There have been no such orders which are affecting the going concern status and Company’s operations of the
Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The CSR policy of the Company is updated and aligned with the amended CSR provisions under the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.

The CSR initiatives undertaken during the year was implemented through Healing Fields Foundation (“HFF"™)
which focuses on women'’s healthcare.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has duly constituted
Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR™) Committee which comprises of the following members as on March
31, 2024:

a) Dr. Vijay Sankaran, Chairman

b) Mr. Pawan Kumar Bhalla, Member

¢) Mr. Himanshu Rastogi, Member

Ms. Deepa Bansal, Company Secretary is the Secretary of the CSR Committee.
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The CSR Commilttee members met once on February 12, 2024 during this financial year.

Particulars of CSR expenditure as required under the provisions of section 135 and schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013, have been appended as Annexure - I1 to this Report.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at workplace. In line with the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, and the Rules
made there under, the Company has adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace. As per the requirement of the said Act, the Company has constituted
Internal Complaint Committee (ICC). Training programmes are conducted for the employees sensitizing on the
prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace. During the Financial Year 2023-24,
the Company has not received any complaints in respect of sexual harassment,

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to maintain cost records in terms of the requirements of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder,

DETAILS RELATING TO DEPOSITS COVERED UNDER CHAPTER V OF THE COMPANIES ACT

During the year under review, your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits from the public
within the meaning of Section 73 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS

There have been no such orders which are affecting the going concern status and Company’s operations of the
Company.

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH
THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

During the period under review, there was neither any application nor any proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

During the year, there were no Insolvency Proceedings initiated against the Company and hence there were no
instances of one time settlement during the Financial Year.



REQUIREMENTS UNDER INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF
INDIA (Third Party Administrators-HEALTH SERVICES) REGULATION, 2016

1. Shareholding pattern of the Company as on March 31, 2024

KN Name of Sharcholder "~ No.of Equity | Percentage
No. Shares of Rs. 10 of Holding
each held
1. | Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited | 39,99.999 | 99.99998%
(“MAITPA™)
2. | Mr. Satish V N Gidugu* R - 1 1 0.000025%
TOTAL 40,00,000 100%

* | Equity share is held by Mr. Satish V N Gidugu as nominee shareholder of MAITPA. However, the
beneficial interest in the aforesaid 1 equity share is with the holding company viz. Medi Assist Insurance
TPA Private Limited.

. Corporate Governance norms for Third Party Administrators

The Board of Directors of your Company hereby confirm that the Company has provided true and correct
information to the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (“The Authority™).

. The Board of Directors of your Company hereby confirm that proper due diligence has been done before

submitting any data / information with the Authority including information about Key Managerial Persons
of the Company.

. The Board of Directors of your Company hereby confirm that the Company has a robust system for

registering, monitoring and disposal of complaints received from Insured Persons / Policyholders, IRDAL,
Insurance Companies, Network Providers etc. and ensure that the resolution is provided in case of such
complaints. Wherever required the Board of Directors confirms that corrective action has been taken for
system related improvements.

. The Board of Directors hereby confirm that there is no conflict of interest of the Company with any other

insurance or insurance related activity or business at any point of time.

. The Board of Directors oversee that:

1. The e-claim settlement process is implemented as per the claim settlement guidelines issued by

NS
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II. The time frames / tumn-around-time / processes with respect to the services are in line with Service
Level Agreements.

N1, The Company has necessary policies with respect to Information Technology (IT). Your Company
is ISO 27001: 2013 certified.

. The Board of Directors hereby confirms that the Company has appointed Ms. Palak Dhall as the Chief

Administrative Officer, who has the required qualifications as stipulated in IRDAI (TPA - Health
Services) Regulations, 2016. The CAO has put in place procedures to ensure that he is responsible for
complying with all regulatory and statutory requirements stipulated cither in the Regulations notified by
the Authority or any other relevant statutory provisions. The CAO has reported to the Board of the
Company about the status of all compliances twice during Financial Year 2023-2024.

. With effect from December 05, 2023, Dr. Milan Kumar Sinha was appointed as the Chief Medical Officer

in place of Dr. Vaibhav Parveen Didwania, who had tendered his resignation from the post of Chief
Medical Officer w.e.f close of business hours of December 04, 2023.

. The Board of Directors hereby confirm that the Company has in place effective and efficient internal audit

mechanism and has appointed a third-party reputed firm to carry out the Audit of various functions,
processes and systems of the Company for compliance and improvement/enhancement. Post-acquisition,
the Board has appointed M/s. PricewaterhouseCoopers Services LLP as Internal Auditors of the Company
for the financial year 2023-24.

i. The appointment of the Statutory Auditors was recommended by the Board and approved by the

Shareholders at the 17* Annual General Meeting held on 05 September 2019 for a period of five years
till the conclusion of 22™ Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2024 as per the
Companies Act, 2013. In the financial year 2023-24, M/s, Dhawan & Associates, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No. 009813N) continues to be the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

j. The Board of Directors hereby confirms that the appointment of all the Directors complies with statutory

provisions as applicable in the Companies Act, 2013.

. The Company has been filing Annual Report along with the Forms, Schedules as prescribed under the

regulation within stipulated timelines with the Authority.

. Your Company has disclosed on its website, the details of network providers with whom the Company

has entered into agreements. The said list is updated on a real time basis.
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Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year Ended 31* March 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited

Unit No. DTJ 425, 4* Floor, Plot No. 11, DLF Tower B, Jasola, New Delhi - 110025

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Raksha Health Insurance
TPA Private Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited’s books,
papers, minute books, forms and retumns filed and other records maintained by the
company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that
in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31% March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited ("the Company”)
for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder,

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1856 (‘SCRA) and the rules made

thereunder (Nof applicable as the
company);

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;




——ﬁ

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable during the
Audit period);

{v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acqguisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable as the company

is an Unlisted deemed public company);

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 1992 (Not applicable as the company is an Unlisted
eem i m

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicabl the c any is an
Inli: lic

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not
applic as the com, is an Unli deem ublic company):

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 {Not applicable as the company is an
Unlisted deemed public company);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and
dealing with client (N / I € Ci ny is an Unlis
public company),

{g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable as the company is an Unlisted
deemed public company); and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable as the company is an Unlisted
deemed public company),

(vi) The Company is engaged into the business of TPA (Third Party
Admlmstmlor) which means a company registered with the Authority, and
/Q > en.aged by an insurer, for a fee or by whatever name called and as may be

L)
é? { g, entioned in the health services agreement, for providing health services
>| CP No. 5802 |7
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as mentioned under the Insurance Regulatory And Development Authority
Of India (Third Parly Administrators- Health Services) Regulations, 2016 as
smended from time to time.
As identified and confirmed by the management of the Company, the
specific laws applicable to the Company during the period under audit is
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Of India (Third Party
Administrators- Health Services) Regulations, 2016. Accordingly, we have
examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the same Regulation
| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(1) Secretanial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

(SS-2).
(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s).
N licable as the any is an Unli; d ed public company;,

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standérds. etc. mentioned above subject to the
following observations:

| further report that:

- The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

- Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

- All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out
unanimously as per the minutes, as duly recorded and signed by the Chairman of
the meeting of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board; therefore there
were no dissenting views required to be recorded as part of the minutes

- | further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the
Company and also on the basis of examination of the compliance system adopted
and maintained by the company, in our opinion, the adequate systems, processes




| further report that, during the audit period, the Company has undertaken following
activities having a major bearing on the Company's Affairs in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations and guidelines etc
e Dr. Naresh Kumar Trehan, Ms. Nitasha Nanda and Mr. Prabodh Chander
have resigned from Directorship during the year
* Mr. Himanshu Rastogi, Mr. Nikhil Chopra and Dr. Vijay Sankaran were
appointed as Directors of the Company during the year.
* Ms. Deepa Sajjan Bansal was appointed as Company Secretary during the
year under review.
« Transfer of 40,00,000 shares of the Company to Medi Assist Insurance TPA
Private Limited, which is an unlisted deemed public Company and is a WOS
of Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited (Listed Entity).

Date: 13/05/2024 For M/s. Gyaneshwar Sahai & Associates

Place: Faridabad Company Secretaries
(Peer Rewewed Uni /t,)/"_aTaT -
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ANNEXURE - 11
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities
1. Company's vision on CSR

Corporate Social Responsibility is the enterprise's responsibility towards the community and environment
in which it operates, It is the continuing commitment by business to behave ethically and contribute to
economic development of the society at large and building capacity for sustainable livelihood. We believe
that CSR is an integral part of our business. The Company constantly endeavors to actively contribute to
the social and economic development of the communities in which it operates taking into consideration
the interest of all its stakeholders namely Policyholders, Insurers, Employers, Provider Networks,
Aggregators and Shareholders.

Your Company may from time to time undertake any project, program and activity on one or more of the
following areas:

1. Healthcare

2. Education

3. Skill Development and sustainable livelihoods

4. Support employee engagement in CSR activitics

5. Any other projects, programs and activities falling within the permissible activities prescribed under
Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder, any circular/notification/guidelines/clarification issued
thereunder including any amendment or modifications.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee :

The following is the composition of the Committee as at March 31, 2024:

Sl No. Name of Member Designation / Nature of Number of Number of
Directorship meetings of meetings of
CSR CSR
‘ Committee Committee
| held during attended
the year during the
_u ey e year |
1. Dr. Vijay Sankaran Chairman & Director ] T Tt
2 Mr. Pawan Kumar Bhalla| Member & Whole-Time 1 [ 1 1
| Director I N (N {
| 3. | Mr. Himanshu Rastogi | Chairman & Director 1 -

e
by

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

www.rakshatpa.com
4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3)

of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the
report): Not Applicable.



. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 8.92 crore

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 17.85 lakhs

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years:
NIL

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b+c-d): Rs. 17.85 lakhs

(a)Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):
Rs. 18 lakhs

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Not Applicable

(c) Amount spent on Impact A went, if applicable: Not Applicable

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(6a)+(6b)+(6c)]: Rs. 18 lakhs

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount Spent for the Total Amount Amount transferred to any fund
Financial Year. (in Rs.) transferred to specified under Schedule VII as per
Unspent CSR second proviso to section 135(5).
Account as per
section 135(6).
Amount | Date of | Name of Amount Date of
transfer |the Fund transfer
Rs. 18 lakhs
Project: Healthcare
Foundational training to 50 Not Applicable
Community Health Entrepreneur
(*“*CHE") and Telehealth Facilitat
Training to 50 CHE's by th
Healing Fields Foundation
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any:

SL Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
No.

(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 17,85,138
(ii) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year 18,00,000
(ili) |[Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 14,862
(iv) [Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the Nil

pprevious financial years, if any

(v) iAmounl available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)+{iy)] 14,862
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7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

SL |Precedin| Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferred to | Amount | Deficie
No. g transferred to Amount in spentin | any fund specified |remainin| pcy, if
Fimnd:ﬁ Unspent CSR | Unspent CSR the |under Schedule VII as | g to be any
Year |Accountunder| Accountunder per section 135(5), if | spent in
section 135 (6) | sub-section (6) (Financial any cceedin|
(in Rs.) of Year Amount | Date of 2
section135 | (nRs) | (i3 Rg) | transfer |financial
(in Rs.) YERKS
(in Rs.)
Not Applicable

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year: ¥es/No

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: Not Applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: Not Applicable

SL | Short particulars | Pincode | Dateof | Amount Details of entity/ Authority /
No. | of the property ofthe | creation | of CSR | beneficiary of the registered owner
or asset(s) property amount CSR Name | Registered
[including or asset(s) spent | Registration address
complete address Number, if
and location of applicable
the property]
Not Applicable

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5): Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
RAKSHA HEALTH INSURANCE TPA PRIVATE LIMITED

hpx <
Dr. Vijay Sankaran Pawan Kumar Bhalla

Director & Chairman of CSR Committee Wheole-Time Director

DIN: 10051238 DIN: 00312478

Address: TB, S L V Residency, Gubbalala Address: House No. 82, Sector-31
Main Road, Gubbalala, Bengaluru- 560061 Faridabad, Haryana — 121008

Place: Bangalore

Date: 13® May 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members of Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Raksha Health Insurance
TPA Private Limited (formerly known as Raksha TPA Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit and cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified
under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the code of ethics. we believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Sundry Debtors/Sundry Creditors/Claims Recoverable/Claims Payable are
subject to reconciliation/confirmation, and the adjustments if any, shall be
made after completion of such reconciliation/confirmation.

Since,the company is involved in health/insurance Auxuliary Services,
our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. RibASson
Management’s responsibility for the financial statements.

Phone: 9811061731, Email: fca.jdhawan@gmail.com




The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134 (5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemg} control.

-~ . . . e




section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has an adequate internal
financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
lanned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have h
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.




Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As per the information and explanations given to us together with our
examination of books of account, we report that the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), as issued by the Central
Government of-India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, is applicable then we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow
statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind As
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors
as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the board of directors, none of
the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit apd Audit_;




jil.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at
31t March 2024on the financial position in tis financial
statements- Refer to “Point 1V of Schedule 12 of Notes to
Accounts”.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lendor invest in other personsor
entitiesdentified inany manner whatsoever(“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) byor on behalf of the Companyor provide any
guarantee,security or the like to oron behalf of the
UltimateBeneficiaries.

(b) The management hasrepresented, that, to the bestof its
knowledge and belief, nofunds have been received by theCompany
from any persons orentities, including foreign entities(“Funding
Parties”), with theunderstanding, whether recordedin writing or
otherwise, that theCompany shall, directly or indirectly, lendor
invest in other personsor entities identified inany manner
whatsoever(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) byor on behalf of the
FundingParty or provide any guaranteesecurity or the like from
oron behalf of the UltimateBeneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit proceduresas considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances,nothing has come to our
noticethat has caused us to believe thatthe representations under
subclause(iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain anymaterial mis-statement.

The dividend has proposed or paid during the year by the
Company is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

According to section 143(3)(b), it has been observed that the
company diligently maintains daily backups of its data on its
server infrastructure. This practice ensures data integrity and
resilience against potential loss or corruption, aligning with
regulatory requirements and best practices iffdata mana




vii. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the
Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books
of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention
is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

(Partner)
M.No. -088596
UDIN: 24088596BKBLEC8389

Place: Faridabad
Date: 13*"May, 2024




ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO
THE MEMBERS OF RAKSHA HEALTH INSURANCE TPA PRIVATE LIMITED ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024; WE REPORT

THAT:

()

(b)

In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible

(a) (A)The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipmentand relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B)The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets on the basis of available information.

All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the
management during the year. There is a regular programme of verification
under which the company selectively conducts the physical verification of
Property, Plant and Equipment to cover all its assets over a period of 3 years,
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company
and the nature of its assets. Certain Property, Plant and Equipment have been
physically verified by the management during the year in accordance with such
programme and as informed, discrepancies which were material in nature and
have been accordingly dealt in the books of accounts.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

our examination of the registered sale deeds / transfer deeds / conveyance
deeds / possession letters / allotment letters and other relevant records
evidencing title/possession provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of all
the immovable properties comprising of land and buildings recorded as
Property, Plant and Equipment, which are freehold, are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date.

Descriptio
n of items

of proerty

Gross | Title whether title deed | Property reason for not
carryin | deeds holder is a promoter, | held since | held in the
g value | held in | director or | which date | name of
the relative/employee of company

name of | promotor/director

NA

NA | NA NA NA NA




(d) According to information and explanations given to us and books of accounts

and records examined by us, During the year the Company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and intangible
assets.

(e) According to information & explanations and representation given to us by

(if)

(i)

(iv)

W

(vi)

(vii)
(a)

the management, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against
the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) The company is a service company, the company does not have any
inventory; hence the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not
applicable.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits during
the year. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not given any loans and guarantees to its Directors or other Body Corporate,
also the company has made investments in compliance with the provisions of
section 186 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the
directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2015 are not applicable to the company for the
year under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central

Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-

section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act.2013 for the business activities

carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

In Respect of Statutory Dues:

According to the information and explanations given to us and according to
the booksand records produced and examined by us, the Company is
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income tax, Service tax, d
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities agplicable to it

b




(b)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, service tax and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 315t March 2024 for a
period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have been deposited with
the appropriate authority on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions which are not accounted in the books of account which have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in Tax Assessment of the
Company, Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been
now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings and repayment to
lenders during the year. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix) (a)
to (c) and sub clause (&) and (f)) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us,
no money was raised by way of term loans. Accordingly, the provision stated in
paragraph 3(ix) (c) of the Order is not applicableto the Company.

{(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the
procedures performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis
have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report
that the Company has not taken any funds from an any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. The Company doesnot
have any associate or joint venture.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries and the Company does
not have any associate or joint venture. Hence, reporting under the clause
3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during, the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. . R LBEtooN




(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertiable debenture (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not
applicable.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in india and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we have not come across any instance of any material fraud by the company
nor on the company.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company
or on the Company during the course of audit of the standalone financial
statement for the year ended March 31, 2024, accordingly the provisions
stated in paragraph (xi) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information given to us, the company is not
a Nidhi company. Hence clause 3(xii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with the sections 177 and 188 of the act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
Annexure-1 of Notes to Account in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till
date, for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
entered into non cash transactions with directors or the persons connected with
him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the arder is not applicable on the company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not required
to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided
to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the Company has not conducted
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year as per
the Reserve bank of India Act 1934.

(c) In our dpinion, and according to the information andsgxplanations
to us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defi




(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(d) As represented by the management, the group does not have more than one
core investment company (CIC) as part of the group as per the definition of
group contained in Core Investment Companies (Reserved Bank) Directions,
2016.

In our openion, company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in
the immediately preceding financial year, Accordingly clause 3(xvii) of the order
is not applicable on the company.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Therefore, provisions of clause (xviii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting and the various conditions
specified under paragraph “Material uncertainty related to Going Concern”
above, which indicates and causes us to believe that there is no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is capable
of meeting all its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and
3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of
audit of standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of
the said clause has been included in the report.

JAGDISH DHAWAN "
(Partner)

M.No. -088596

UDIN: 24088596BKBLEC8389

Place: Faridabad
Date: 13t"May, 2024




Annexure -B to the Auditors Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub- section 3 of section
143 of the Companies Act 2013(“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of RAKSHA
HEALTH INSURANCE TPA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the company"”), as on March 31, 2024,
in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the company for the year ended
on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India('ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation, and maintenance of adequate internal financial that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of fraud and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our auditWe conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act’ 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued
by Institute of Chartered of India. Those standards and the Guidance Note required that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over Financial Reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the Internal Financial Controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting. '

1
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting




A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertains to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding the prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any revaluations of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial
reporting may becomg inadequate because of changes in condition, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as on 31st March 2024, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

JAGDISH DH7
(Partner)
M.No. -088596

UDIN: 24088596BKBLEC8389

Place: Faridabad
Date: 13" May, 2024



Raksha Henlth Insurance TP.A Private Limlied
Balance sheet as 4t 31 March 2024
(Al amounts ate in Indian Rupees in millions. unless othenwise stuled)

Asat As nt
Faricalins e e ik R 3 March2024 31 March 203
Assets
Non-current assets
Property. plant and ¢quipment 4 2484 nm
Right-oF-use assets Sta) 798 B2
Itangible assers & .
Financial gssets
Invesiments 7al 5033 042
Ober financial asscts T(b) 754 506.98
Income oy mssets (net) ] sa03 <8745
Deferred 1ax ssseis (net) U] N 147
Total non-carrent nssets 21674 768.31
Curreat nssels
Financial assets
Investments 104a) - 955
Trade receivables 10k} 11162 1433
Cash and cesh equivalents 10 {c) 2308 5028
Oher bank balances 10 (dy 391 86 na
Other financial assets 10 ¢ed 4607 1523
Other cutrent assets 1 80 5K 9
Total current assets 655,21 4579
Tatal assets $71.95 1,034.10
Equity and Habilities
Equity
Equity share caprtal 12 1000 40,00
Other equity 3 — s . sum
Total equity 3948 614.38
Liabilities
Nen-current Habilities
Financial ltabilites
Lease liabilitics Sib) 4083 s5iLn
Provisiens " 2552 2121
Tatal non-current Habilities 66,78 71.92
Current Babilitics
Fimancial lisbilities 15
Leasc limbilities 5(b) LK n»2
Trade payables 15 (=)
total ding diies of micro prises and smsfl enterprises A L] 152
total outstanding dues to creditors ather than micrs enterprises snd 80 79
smiall enterprises
Other financial labilities 156 10,66 3230
Contract liebilfties 16 18991 220.62
Orther current liabilities 16 ta) 733 139
Provigsans 17 17.81 18.21
Total current labilities 265.75 346.80
Total liabiities 33150 419.712
Totad equity wnd labilities E71.95 1,034.10

Themu'mhmﬁmutmmmhﬂqnm*d:@fmmumndqmw'mhu

an integral part of these financial statements.
As per ogr repon of even date atached

COKBLE C 9389

Place. Faridabad
Date: 13 May 2024

Place Bengaluru

For and on bebalf of the Board of Directors
Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
CIN: UBS199DL2002PTC113925

Date: 13 May 2024



Raksha Ilcalth Insurance TPA Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al gmounts gre m Indion Rupoca in mailww unless mhcm'l.u nmd:

For the year ended  For iﬁe}ur ended

Particulars B - '\-,0'" ] 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Continuing operations
Income
Revenue from operntions 18 5194 608.31
Other income L I e 56.17 37.75
Tatal income - an §1561 646.06
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 0 33537 360.56
Finance costs 21 6.05 756
Depreciation snd amaortisation expense 2 43.16 34.91
Other expenses 23 20049 161.31
Totsl expenses 585.07 584.34
FProfit before exceptional item and tax from continging operations (9.46) 61.72
Exceptional tems §7.58 =
Profit before tax for the year fram continsing operations (97.04) 61.72
Tax expense:
Current tax 25 1.40 18.26
Adjustment of tax relating tv earlier years (0.sl) 046
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (24.86) — )]
42407, 1662
Profit after tux for the year from continuing eperations {72.97) 45.10
Discontinued operations
Profi/ (loss) for the year from discontinued operations 228 (6.97)
Tax for the year . 1.76
Profit/ (loss) ufter tax for the year from discontinued operntions (2.28) (5.22)
Profit for the year i T . ) 39.88
Other comprebensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and boss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans .64 366
Fair value changes in equity instrument through other comprehensive Income 0.26) 10.13)
Income tax relating to ilems that will not be reclassificd to statement of profit and loss il e __feosy (L10)y
Total ather comprehensive (loss) for the vear, net of income tax 0.31 242
Total comprehensive income for the vear L"’!{ &
Earnings per share for continning operations 26
(Face value of Rs. 108 per share (31 March 2023: Rs. 100 per sharr))
Basic and diluted (18.24) 11.28

Earnings per share for discontinued operations [Face value of Rs. 100
per share (March 31, 2023: Rs. 100 per share)]

Basic and diluted (057 (1300
Earuings per share for inuing sod di i |Face

value of Rs. 100 per share (\lum 31,2023: Rs. 100 prr share)|

Basic and diloted (1881) 9.97

The sccompanying noles to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and ofher explanatory information forms an integral
part of these financial Natements.
As per our report of even date attached

For and en behalf of the Board of Direetars of
Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
CIN: (/85199DL2002PTC1 13928

—r B Pusgo- B &

awan Kumar Bhalls  Himanshu Rastogi ann!lanl
Whaoletime Director Director Company Secretary
Membershij DIN: 00312478 DIN: 08700476 M.No. A37579
UDIN - ero
Place: Faridsbad Place: Faridabad Place: Benguluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 13 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024
B}
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Raksha Health losurance TP Private Lisabed
Statement of cush fows fur the niwe manths ended 31 December 2023
oAl amounts arc in dndian Rupees in milllons, unless othervise stated )

Far the year ended For the yesr ended

Faricees o 3 March20M4 31 March 2023
Cash Mows from operating sctivities
#Loss) Profit before 1ax for the year from contmuing operations 19704 6172
1Lass ) hefore tax fur the year from discontinued operstions 228 1522
Aot it
Depreciation and smartsition expense 12 84S
Amortstion of nghtof-use ossets LA 40 de
Loxs on sale of fixod asset - 137
Intérest on lease liobilities 34 730
Allowance fior expectod credis losacs on trade recenvables and othes recenables 387 1z
Net gain o financial assets measured ot fair value through profit or loss B nes)
Profit on sale of current imvestment 1504y -
Fimance costs 0.69 0.2
Imterest income 0.3 134620
Credutors provision np loager required writien back 10.24) 1029
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 91.85) 85.69
Working capital adjustments:
Trade pavables 130.93) 1856
Other financial habilities 121641 p2 )
Onher lisbilities 16633 132.56)
3 556 1511
Trode recervables 548 1915
Onher fimncial assets 12094y 5.
Other assets Y 73.29) 195
Cash generated from operations (21484) s
Income taves paid ticlunded) 36.02 4218y
Net cash (wred in)/ generated from eperating activities (A) 17782 102
Cuh flows from investing sctivities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ofher mmngible assets LH) 14.23)
incloding capital advances
Purchase of non-current investmenty w0im 1295
Purchase of currend imesmenty a3 12200y
Investment in fived depasit s 27
Interest reccived I 1o
Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing sctivities (8) : [ o
Cash flows from financing nctivitics
Finance costs paid 0.69) 10.26)
lnterest paid on lease habilities 15.36) (7.3
Repasmient of lense linbilines _ L3209 4296,
Net cash generated! (used in) finnacing xctivities (C) (38.14) 158.53)
Nel iscrease! (decrease) in cash and cush equivalents (A+B+0) 127.20) [[EFTT
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 0 £252
Cash and cash equivalents ot the end of the vear .08 5018
Component of cash and cash cquivaleats
Halances with banks (Refer Note 10 4c1)
n current sccounts 2308 s012
Cash on hand . a6
Total cash and cash equiraleats == sa1

The sbove cash flow statemant has boen proparcd under the ndirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 - “Statement of cash flows” notified snder section
132 of Companics Act, 2013 ¢'the Acf) read with Rue 4 of the Companies (Indian Accouniing Standards) Rules 2015 and the relevant provisions of the
Act

The sccompamying notes 1 the financial statements inclodiog & semmary of g podicres mnd other expli y il [
insegral part of these finnncial statements.

As per our repont ol even date altached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directnrs
Ruksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
CIN: USS199DLI002P T 13923

e e i > o Gl

Whnletine Director ( ‘ompany !n:ml-}
DIN: (6312478 I)N. NP0 T8 MNa AITST9

agi :
v 24088596 Bk B LE C 9389

Place: Faridabd Place: Fandabad Plsce Benpalury Pluse Bengalury
Date 13 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024 B 13 May 2024 Date 13 May 2024




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Statement of chunges in equiry for the for the vear ended 31 Nareh 2024
LAl amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions except share data and per shire data. unkess otherwise stated)

A, Equity share capital

ek s - & Ml Asatdi March 2024 Asatdi March2033
- Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amaount
Batance ot the beginning of the v 4,000,000 0,00 4.000.000 40,00
Balance at the end of the year 4,000,000 40.00 4,000,000 40,00
Refer Note 12
B. Other equity
[T e e e Reserve and Sorplus Total
Particalary Notes Retained Equity General reserve
earnings instroments
Balance as at | April 2022 (restated &5 per lud AS) £02.27 - .81 540,08
Profit afier tux for the year 3928 - - 3988
Remcasurements of defined benefit linbilin/ (asset) 274 (031 - 242
otal comprehensive income for the year 262 |lr.ll|f - 4230
Tramsaction with owners in their capacity as ow ners:
Transfer © peneral reserve (0.00 - oo -
(R.00) - . (6.00)
at 31 March 2013 5689 O30 3781 sugJJ
536.89 1 .81 57438
7523) - - (75.25)
Remeasuremnents of defined benefit liability/ (asser) 048 {0.17 - 031
‘otal comprehensive income for the vesr {7477 10.17)] - (74.94).
ransaction with uwnery in their capacity as owners:
= 462.12 A8 3781 49944
* Refer Note 13
The accompanying notes to the financial including o y of signi ing policics and other explanatory information forms sn integral parn

of these financial statcments.

For and oo behalf of the Board of Directors
Raksha Health Insarance TPA Private Limited
CIN: UBS199DL2002PTC | 13925

S ”
& i gues®

< Pawan Kumar Bhalla Himanshu Rastogi Deepa Banssl
Pariner - Wholctime Dwector Director Company Secretary
3 Number: 0885 DIN: 00312478 DIN. 08700476 M.No. A37579
UDIN ﬁ OQ%Q{?KBLEC g£389

Place: Faridshod Place: Faridshad Place: Bengaluru Place Bengaluru
Date 13 May 2024 Dute. 13 May 2024 Dute: 13 Muy 2024 Date: 13 May 2024




Ralsha Health Insurance TPA Frivate Limited
Notes to the flasncial statements for the year esded 31 Mareh 2024

1 Company overview
Raksha Health Iiswiance TPA Prvae Limited 1 “the Company* 1. was mcodporated on 23 Janaan 3003 under the provision of Uompanies Act 1958 The
Company's registored office 18 Unit no. DT 425, dth Floc. Plot Mo Ll DLF Tower B Jasole. New Dilhi-1 10020 The business eperatons of the Compum
wr carriod oul o1 varivs cities in India

The Campany s primaniy engaged in provading services a6 Third Party Adimimiarstor (TPA 1 1o bealth marance secior health mensgement seevices. sewl
allied service pertaimng b the hesltheare

2 Basis of nccountiog sud preparation

| Basls of prep and of Ind AS:

The financiol staterents conply i all awterial aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (bereinaficr referred 1 08 the “lid AS | as nofified by Minsstn of
Corporate Affairs under Scctian 133 of the Companics Act. 2013 1 the Act') read with the Congpanied (Indian Aceounting Standerds) Rules 2015, us
amended and other refevans provisions of the Act

The financisl slatements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authonzed and sppronved for sssue by the Boand of Directues o JO0 May 2024

For all periods up bo and including fhe vear ended 31 March 2023, the Conpany preparcd its fnancisl with ing siandandy
notificd under the section 133 of the A mwmw:umcm-mmﬂmnm 2001 (Indisn GAAP) which ix
cansidered as “Previods GAAP™ The financil staicoenits for the yesr ended 31 March 2023 aie the first lnd AS financial sistements of the Compaivy. As
pet the principles of Ind AS 101, hmunhﬂuulmﬂ‘u“ Refer note 30 for puderstanding the ransition from previcas GAAP 1o Ind AS
and its effect on the Company s P J financial

These are the first fnancial satements of the Company prepared in sccordauce with Ind AS. Accerdingly. Ind AS 101, Fins-time Adoptioa of Indisn
Accounting Standards has boen applied. Refer note 40 for an explanation of how the transiticn from Previous GAAP 1o Ind AS hes affested the previomly
separted financial pusition. total equity and 1ot comprehensive income of the Compam:

11 Functionsl snd presentution correacy
These firuncial staternents are presented in Indian rupees. which 18 #lso the functions] currency of the Company. All amotmts have boen roanded-off 16 the
nearest milliun, unless othenwise indicated

111 Basis of measmrement

The financial statement have been prepared on 8 higtorical cost buss. except for the followng

g
Firncial assets snd liabihities dernalives ingruments ) ) l!’-dr:
benofi and other \emoloveebenefitobliemtions  _ [Presselvalus of defined |
IV Ve of estiuates and judgements
mmmmw ummmhdl\swﬁu has mode catimaies, These cstimates.,
affect the ap g policies mnd the repurted ammunts of sssets and Habilities. the disclosares of contingent

|wwlhmwnuhﬂimn¢mwmmafmmumwp-mdmumuw Accountiog estimates could change from
petiod w0 perind Actual reeulis could differ fiom thase estimates. Approgeiare changes in etimates are nade as management becormes aware of changes in
ciscumsiances annoiding the cstmmstes. Changts m estinales are réllected w the financial stwterments in the yeor in which clanges see made and, if
material, their effects are disclosed m the nofes o the finsncial simements.

Esti d underhy umpticns are d on an ongolig basis Revisiuis 1o g wie recoyiised prospectively

estinstes il are requined b particular for:
(#) Defermination of the estimated usefol fves

Ulscful lives of property. plant and cquigment ace based on the fife prescribed in Schedule 1] of the Companies Act. 2013 In cises, where the usefl lves are
different flom that peeseribed in Schedule I'l-dhwtufﬁmﬁlcmlhcmm‘hmpmlwmmmlh—xdmm

the estimated nsage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset. pasd history of i changes, #f3
wamantics aind maintcnance suppost

(L] d of defimed benefiy
The obligation ariging from defined berfit plan is detenmined on the basis of acnusrigl Key setuacial P nclude discount rare. liends

in galary escalation, actuarial rates seel hife expertancy, The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reponmg peniod on
governmient bands. The period Io maturity of the underdying bonds comespond ta rhe probable matirity of the postcmplovment benetit sbligations. Due 10
complexities jmvols o in the valuation and its kg tem native, defined benefit abligrtion is sensitive 1 changes i hese sscumplions. Al susanptions e
reviewed ot euch reporting period

(€1 Lases




Rabaha Henlth Insurance TP A Privale Limited
‘Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Th:Loﬂwmﬁ‘ﬂumll'nulmtmqnlnﬂsmkllaﬁ:hudmhmnuuu!dunkmnmduilkﬂifwdlmmu

Judgment, Comp of the Jeare Habilities and nght-ofine assts reuires management fo cstimate the lease term (inchuding
anticipated mmﬁnwhw#nuemmuwmn Management estimmies the lease term based on past practices ind reasonably emfnwied anticipatal
finure evenis. The disconnt mie b generally basad on the mcrementsl bormowing rake specific 1o the lease being evalusted o for & porfolio of leases with
similar charagteristic

id} Expected credit losses on fimancial assets

The impisment provisions of financial assets wre tised on AssUmpions about nish of default mwd expected tuming of colfection. The Conpany uses gudgment
in making Mese assumptions end selecting (he inputs 1o the impairment caloulation. based on the Company past history, customer’s
exusting matket conditions es well as forward loaking estimates a1 the end of each reporing year

{e} Other estimutes:

The preparstion of Gnancial starernents mmolves estimates and agsumptions that affect the reported amount of assets. libilities. disclonwre of contingent
liahviliries at the dote of financial stasements and the repored amount of revenues and expenses for the reparting period

¥V Messurement of falr values

The Compony's ing policies and di require the of fait valucs for both financial and non-financial sssets snd labilines.

The Company has on established comtrol framewndk with respect 1o the mescurement of fir valnet The monagement regulady reviews significant
unobservabie imputs and valuation sdjusmments

Further informiation about the sssumyptions mate in measuring fair vafues 13 inchuded in note 27 - financial instraments




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Neates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Vi

Corrent sud son-currest clawificution

The Company preseits assets and lisbilities in the balsnce shoot based on curvent  nun-curvent clasasfication

Aut asset is classified a5 curment wiven it satisfies ainy of the following criteria:

=i 15 expected 1o be éalized in. or 13 micnded for sale or consumprion in, the Compans s nonmel aperating excle

=1t i hebd primiarily fon the purpose ul boing taded.

=1t s expected 1o be realized within 12 months after the reporting date: or

=1t is cash or cash cquivalent unless it is restricted from heing exchanged or msed to setils o liabilicy for af fcast 12 months afler the reporting date

A linbiity is classified a5 current when it satisfies auy of the following critena

1t s expected b be settied (n the Company s nonmsl aperating cycle.

~ it is held primurily for the purpase of being raded.

=it 14 due 10 be setthed within 12 months afler the reporting date; o

= the Company docs it have an ditional vight o defer settl of the bability for at least 12 months fter the reporting dsre Terms of  Lishility that
could #t the option of the coumserperty. resull in s seftlernent by the wsie of equiry struments do pot sfiect ity clissilication

Current assets liabrlities inclode cuzrent portiou of non-current Anancial sssets labilities respectively
Al other assots liabifities are classilicd & mon-cument. Deferred 1ay assets and Habilites (i any s are classified 85 non-cument sxsets and labalines
Operating cycle

Based on the mture of the opertions and the time between (he acq of asiets for andd their reali iy eash of cadh equivalouts. the
Company hos ascertamed its openting cycle &s twelve momths for the purpose of curment Inssifieation of nssets and liabilities

Significant accounting policies

Financial instruments

Recognition and initinl seasurement

A financial instrment is any contace st gives rise 0.0 financisl asser of one eaney snd 2 Minancial lability of equity instrument of snather entity

Finsncisl mstruments also cover comtmets ko bin o sell a non-firamcial siem that can be scttiod nct i cash ot another firnancisl instrument. o by exchanging
Financiwl imtruments. g5 17 the coutrscts weve lnancinl mstouments. with the exeephon of coneacts that were entered info and cortimue o be beld for the
parpose of the receipt or delivery of'a noa-(inancial nem in accordance with the entiny s expected purehase. sale of usage requiremsents.

Financial assets and fnascial liabilines ac recognized when the Company b party 1 the fthe
Recoguition and initial measurement - financial smsets and financial Habilities:

.\Mhlmmwhntm:unnmm-nmmﬁmdhﬂimumnﬂg measurcd a1 fiir value plus. foc an flem not @t fhir valve
fhrough profit and loss (FVTPLL transsction costs thet ere directly atiri of st costs directly miribotshle to the
scquisition of financisl assets or finsncual lisbilitics at FVTPL are recognize i _ildnnlmmormlkaadlm

Finance income consests of avierest income on funds invested and gaing an the disposal of FYTPL Nnancisl assets Triterest income is iecognired a4 it accrues
im the giatement of profit and loss. using the effective inferest method.

Finuner expeitsci consist of inforest cxpensc on loans and barowings and financial hahilitics. The costs of these are recoguiaed in the statament of profit nd
Ioss using the effective inerest method

Ch and

Finnvcial nisets

‘The Company clasvifies (inancwl asscts &8 measured 31 smortized tosl. tain vatue thiogh other comprehensive inzone (“FVOCT ) or fair valoe thiouh
profit and boss I'FVTPL™) on the basis of Sllowing

= the cutily"s business mode! for managing the fuancial sssets. and

= the contiuctual eash Mlow chamctenatics of the fmancial asset

Fioancial wiets are mit quend 10 their initial recog except if aad in the petiod the Company chanpes ws business model for menaging
Mnancial mssets.

Ameriized cast;

A financial asict i claeificd and smeasuced o smortizad cost i Bath of the following nonditions ase mct:

« e finnnciol asset is held within o business niodel whvade objective i 1o hild financial assets in urder 1o colleet confractusl cash flows. wnd

« the contratial terns of the financial asset give rise on specificd dates 10 cash flows that are suldy paymients of principal and inrereat on e principel
wnourd eutstnding

5AS800,
ST

* Diy




Raksha Health lusurance TPA Private Limited
Notes fo the fmanclil statements for the year ended 31 Murch 2024

Fair wkie thrmugh sther comprebentive fncome (“F1 0CT)

A financial gssct is clussified and measured st FYTUCH i1 both of the following conditions sre met

= fise Gnancial asset (s held within  business rudel wise objectne i achieved by both coliecting contractiual cush fows and sellimg nsncon aisets and

= the contractual temis of the finsncial s3de1 give rise on specified dates 1o cash Nows that ae solely pavments of priscipal e frgerent on the privcipal
amount ovtstanding.

On initial recoprtion of sn equin uvestimest that o vot held for mading. the Company may imevocably eleet w0 present subsequent changed i e
investment s fair value in OC] | designated 81 FWOC] - pquity invesmment) This elecrion 11 made on an investmen) by investment bass

Fuair valne through prafit and loss (~FVTPL")

A financial aased is classificd and nscasored at FYTPL unless it i measured af smonized cost o at FVOCH This includes ofl derivative financial assels O
imital recagnition, the Company may imevocably desighate o finuncial psset thar ofherntae meets the requitements 1o be measured of amonized con or o1
FYOCT as st FVTPL if doing so ehimi or significantly neduces & miwnaich that would otherwise arise.

Finmncial ussety: Business mode! essersment

The Company makes un asscaament of the objective of the busineds medel m which & financial wsscr is held at ivestmen level because this reflects the best

way the busitiess is mandged and is provided The inclades:
= the stated policies sod objectives for cach of mch investments and the operation of those policies in practice.
= the righy that affect the performance of the business moadel (and the financial within and how those risks are managed:

=the frequency. voliwne and timing of sakes of financial assets in prios periods e reasons tor such sales and expeeiations about fite sakes sctviry,

Transfirs of financial assets to third paries w tanactions that do not quakify for derecopnition ans not consilered saes fo this plrpose. condament with the
Company s continuing recoguition of the assets
Financial ossets that ave held for trading or are managed and whase performance is evaluated on & fair value basis are measured st FYTPL.




Rakaha Fealth [nsoraace TPA Privite Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the venr ended 31 Murch 2024

& Fmancial instruments (continued|
Flmericinl assets: Assessment whethet cantractual cash flows are xolely pavments of principal awd interess:

For the purposes of this sssessment. “principal i defined a3 the (hic value of the finaocial asset on fnitial cegogrition. “Inferest” is defimed o> considertion
for the time yalue af money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount ousumding dising & paniculis period of time and for other basic
lending risks and vosts (c.g. liquidity risk and dministmtive costs. es well as a profit margin
In sssessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principsl and interest. e Comipany considers the comtractual tenms of th: instrument
Tius includes miscssing whether the financial ussel cottaing s contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash fows such that it
would aol nseet This condinon. [n making dhis sssessment. the Company considers

vents that would change ih ar timing of cash flows,
mmmmhmmn cliding varable mtcrest e feansres
= prepayment and extension testures; and
- terma that Limit the Company”s clam to cash flows fiom specified assets (e g non recourse Teatures |

Amummrummhﬁdehmmduwmmmihwmmm,mmd

amounts of principal and inferest o the principal amouni outstanding. which may inchide for earfy termination of the

contract. Additionally, for a financial asset sequired af a sigaificant discount oe Wm-um:dmmnnhnuupﬂwm

i droviglnios b That substantially sepresents the coutractunl par amount plus accrued (bul unpaid) conttactial inferest (which may also include
be additnpmi

[ is treated a4 consistent with this crtenon if the Gair value of the prepavment featire 15 insignificant
at initlal recognition.
Fiwancial assets; Subsequent measurcmnt ond paies and fusies
inancial scets at FVTPL These msets are subsequently mcasired ut fuir vilue, Net pains and losses, inchading amy
e of divadend mnmmd‘ t and Joss
Financial assets 8l amortised cost asacts are sub d cosr usiing the effex
ﬂ:-_lmdm-imlywlum rnmmwmp-h
| and f profit and loss. Aoy gais o loss on
i 5 i-wufwu!luﬂton E
Fquity investments st FYOCT These assets ase subsequently measured af fair value. Dividends are recognised a3 income in
{Srarement of Profit and Loss imless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of past of the cost
of the fnwvestment. (they et gais sl losses ie reoopnised i OCT aud are oot reclassified to

| ee— _{swtement of profivand loss
Fimancinf fiahitiies. Ci d gwing and losses

Finsncial lisbilifies are classified as measurcd o amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial Hability Is classified ag a1t FVTPL i it is classified s held for uading.
or il is & derivative of it i desighated e such an initial recognition. Financiol Habilitics st FVTPL are measured al fule value and net gains snd losses,
including any inferest expense, are recogrused i sateinent of profit und loss.

Oshier financial labilities are subsequently measured o amonised cost using the effective mterest method Inferest cxpense and flengn exchange paing and
lacses wre recopnised in statement of profit sd loss. Any gain or loss on derecogniian is aldo recognised in statemenit of profit and loss

(ii) Derecoguition
Financlal assets
mmwnanwumpﬁlmdm-mkmmlﬂﬂnhhdhiﬁunhnnnmmlnmﬂllml!atkmhﬂnm:
cnsh flows in s in winch all af the risks and rewards of ownership of the financisl asset are nansferred or in which

lht‘mmnmmhmmumh all of the risks and rewnrds of ownershiy and does nol retain contrel of e finsncial aset.

Financial liabilitles

The Company derecognises a finuncisl lisbthny when it comtractual obligations are discharsed or cancelled, or expine. The Company also derccognises 3
financial liobility when its terus are modifeed and the cash flows under fhe modified ferms are substantially different. (n this case. & pew financial lisbility
based an the modified temts is tecogmised o1 Fair valoe. The diffcrence between the camryving emoent of the financial liabalin extimguishod and the new
financial liability with wodified terms i recognised i statoment of profil and less.

(v} Offsetting

Financial assets and financial lbilmics ase ofiset and the nev amounl presented 1 the balance stiect when. ond onfy when. the Company curenth has 3
Itplhmaﬁmwztnmhun-unsun.huunnnmucmmnunnmnrux!ikﬂumelmdnmthwlﬁywnm!’.

b Foreign currenty transactioas
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Trausacthons in foreign comencies are imastitad wty fhe respective functional cumency of the Compain a1 the exchange mivs at the dases of the tansactions

Bhenctary assels and liabilties denomusaier) i foreign cumrancies me Ianstated ik the fmcuonal cumency a) ihe exchange @k ot the fepoing date. Naw-
motactary metets and linbiluics ias e measured at fir valine in a Roreign currency are translaied into the fincuanal cotrency of the cxchange rate when the
Ihir value was determined. Noo-mossctany flemes that are measiired hased on historieal cost in & forckgn corencs ane tranglased at the exchange e af the dote.
of thie transetion Fureign corrency differences are generally recognised iy the statemem of prafit and loss

Cash flow shatement

Cash Hows are reported using indwwect method, wherehy net profits before s is adjusied for the effects of transactions of 3 noa-cash nature and sos deférmls
ar f past or future cash recei| peyments. The cash flows froam operanny. investing and financing activities of the Company ane scprepated.

Earnings per share

The basic camings per share { EPS”) bs compuited by dividing the net profit (loss ) after tax fo the vears atributoble to cquity sharchalders by the wetghied
average number of equity shares outstanding duning the year.

The wumber of shares used in computing diluted comings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares consideced for derving basic earmings
et share and also the weighted averaps cumber of cquity' shares that could have been wswed on the coversion of all dilwtive potential equiny shares.
Drhutive potcritial equity shares are deeoed converted as of the begimng of the period unbess isstied at  Iater date. In compuling dilutive carving per share.
onty potential oquity shares that are dilutive { ¢, which neduces eamings per share or increases loss per share are included.

Dit S adjust the 6 d in the of buslc EPS to consider
= The afier-incorie tax effect of interest ard other financing costs sssocinted with dilutive polential equity shares, and
* The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been vutsmnding sssuming the coaversion of all dilutive potenitial equity shares
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[

Revenue recogaltion
Incamr fram services

Revenue is recognized upon tansferring control of pramised senices 10 cusiomers in an amoei that reflects thint consitheration we expect 1o receive in
exchange for those services

‘The Compaty derives revenve from rendering Thind Party Administration [TPA) services is measured eifher a3 4 percentuge of msttance premium o
amowat per life family covered and lamipsum amount under the pelicy depending an the terms of the contract enfered into with nsurence companies and
povemmment agencics Such amounts sre recognized 88 revenue on o pro-mte bes during the period of the underdying isursnee policy Performance
whligations while rendering services ane smisficd over time.

The Company’ presents revenues net of midirect tases i its siuternent of profit and less.

Revenue in excess of insoicing are classified as unbilled receivables where related performance obligation are rendered and right % considerstion ix
wnconditional. Invorcing in excess of movenss are classificd as contract Habilines.

A contrsct liability id the oblrgation W transfer poods o1 services 1o # customer for which the Company has teceived consideration for an smount of
consideration i duc) from the custamer 1f 2 customer pays consideration before the Cwmpany WansTers poods of gervices 1o the custotner. » contract lability
is recogmised when the pavment is made or the pavinent s doc (whichiever is catlizr) Contraet Habilities wre ricognised a1 revenoe when (e Compary
performs under the contrct

Froperty, plant sud equipment
Kecognitivn gad measarement:

ftems of property. pinnt aid equipment are moasured o cost less & and am d lusses if s The cott of mn
ttem of propery, plant and equipment comgnises

o) its purchase price, includmy impon duties s posefinsdable purchase ves, after deducting wade discounts and ebotes.

bl any costs directly atiributable 1o bringing the 2ss¢1 1o the location and condition necessany for it to be capable of operating in the maneer intended by

managrment
€) the iuital cstimate of the costs of dismantling and cemoving the Rem und restoring the séte on which if 15 locofed. fhe obligation for which an ennity incars
eitrer when the item i acquired or as @ consequence of having used the ftem during & particular period for purposes offier fhan fo produce inventorics during
That period.
An tem of property. plat and equipnecat is dimicated frum the Ninancial statementy oo disposal or when Bo furiher benefit s expected from 1s e nd
dispaosal wpmwhuwmuumdm lant and equipment is necognised fin staterent of profit and loss

o] P i v if i s probable dat the future cconamic benefits associoted with the expenditure will How to fhe Company

Advances paid wwards the sequisitron of property. plant sod equipment outsianding 3 of cach reporting daw are shown as caprtal ahvances
Amotints paid twirds the sequisition of property, plant and vquipment outstanding 2 of each reporting date and the cot of property. plant snd equiptoent
not ready for intended use before such date src discloscd under capital work-in-progress

Depreciution
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment i3 provided on smight-line method aver the useful fves prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the
Compatiics Act. 2013 in arder to reflect sctml wiage of the assets. The Company estimates the aseful hives for property, plant and cquipment as follows.

ofmsen U S S 7= Wi
|Furniture and fistures n
omputer cquipiments

Depreciation (4 provided on & pro-ats bams 1e from the date on wivich xeset & seady for use and the deprecinion charge fisr the year i roognised n
statement of profit and lass

lLeaschald improvesments are depreciated over e kemse lerm of three fo six years or the osefll bves of the mssets. whnchever s fower

Intangible sssets
1} Recopnition and messsrensent
Aeguired intungibic assets

Intongible ossel compnses of suftware Intangible asguts are recoynized only 1f ey mﬂwﬂﬂ) drmﬂﬁrlmlﬂk(‘m exprects 10 reeene ffure
benefils arising oul of them Soch asscty arc stnied o cost |

The intangible ussels are amontzed on @ sraight line hasis over their expected useful s, The Conspumy had estimated the vsefil lifie of soffware a3 3 veirs.
and have been whofly depreciated ot vear end 31 March 2023,
Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure by capitalescd only when il creasrs i futue econombe bewefits embodied i the speciiic ussét fo which it relstes. Al other
expenditure is fecognised in profit or loss e mcunved
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Amortisation

Amortisation is caleulatd bused oo the cost of the asset. less its reshiual value

Amartisation is recogided m statement of profit and los on 8 straight-line basis mer the esmmated uscful fives of intungible assets fram e date that fhes
are available for use. Maragement believes it perind of ammntisation 13 1epresentative of the penod over wwhich the Compam. expects o derne ceonomic
bencfits from the use of the Resets.

Amadiisation methods and useful lives are revicwed periodically including =1 each firancial vesr end. Amamsanan on additions end disposals dunng the
veur i provided on proportionate basis

Goodwill i measured ot cost fess accmmulated impaimient foss.

b Impalrment
Tmpairment af financial sssets

hmﬁmmmmmeiﬂhmﬁiMquhdhﬂﬂs 109, which requires measirement of loss alfowasce of an amount
| equal to lifetime cxpecred credin losses. Lifetime expected credin losses are the expected redit lasses that result from all possinie defuli evenss over the

expected lile of 3 finencial insmunen.

The Company belicves fhat the canving amount of sliowance for expected eredd loss with respert 10 uade receivables. unbifled recervables and other

financinl assels is adequate

The gross camyiing omount of a finencial asset ts wrinen off feither panially o in full) & The extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
penenlly the ease when the Compasy mmnnulumMMMermumudMMtuMmuﬁw—mﬂoﬂnm
the amourts subject 10 the weite-ofl. However. financial aesets that are writien off could still b subiet 10 enfircement activities in order o comphy with
Company’s procedures for the tecovery of amount due

Trmpuirment of non-finuncial mevets

The Compmn assesses Tongdined moets such & propeity. plant. equipment and acquired intngible assets for impainnent aheniever cvents o¢ changes in
3 indicai that the camying amount of an aser or Company of assets may not be recoverble I any such indieatron eviss. the Company
estimales the recoverable ameunt of fhe asset ot group of assets
The recoverble amount of an asset or cesh generating unit 5 The higher of its fair vl less cost of disposal (FVLCD and its safue-wmise (VIU) The VIL
of long-lived assets is colculated vsing projected futare cash flows. FVLCD of s cash penerating unif is computed using tumoser wnd camings aniltiples. 1f
the reciverable amount of the agsel or the rezoversble amonnt of the cash generating unit 1o which the asset belonigs & loss than it camrying smovet. the
carrving amount 15 reduced 1o ks recovesable amout. The reduction is treated as an impairment loks and s fecoptized 10 the Statement uf Profit sd Livs
Impaimment los recogmised In respect of COU is allocaed firal to reduce the camying amoum of goodwill allocated I the CGLU (F anv 1. £nd then 1o reduoe
the camying amounts of other asscts of the CGU o # pin 12t basis.
| ll'-lhl!wmydlkMhmdﬂmhﬂlw‘mﬂ\lﬂlﬂdkﬂp‘mlmmhmpleulu.ﬂlmmmﬂlwﬁh
| 5 stz reversed wich that the assel is seevgnized ol s receserable smount but nor cxcooding writen down valie which
mu«wmguwmuuummmmu Trngasirmctdt bivis in respeet of the ool is ot subsequentiy e ersal

|
1
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Lenses

At inception of u contract. the Company pascsses whether 8 cncl is. of contuns 3 lease A contoact i or comtaind. s lease of the coutraet comers the nght
o contol the use of on ideatified asscr for @ period of time in exchenge for consideration

Campany us # lesies

The Compary’s leuse nssct class prmanty conaisl of leases fv buildings. The Company. a1 the mception of & conmat, assesses whether the contradt is &
lesse on not leade. A contract 5. of containg, ¢ lease if the contract conveys the tight i control the use of an identified asset far 3 tine in exchange for o
consideration. To assess whether & contract conveys the right 1o contrel the wic of an identificd ssset. the Compunny sssesics whether

1) the contragt involves the rc of an identificd aeser.
11 the Company hats the right 25 obtain sshstantially all the economic beriefits from use of the axset throughou the penod of e, and
dhiy the Company has the right to direct the s of the assct

The Campany recopiises o right-of-use scsct snd & lease lishility o1 the lesse commencement date. The cost of the nipght-of-use asset messured ot mcegtion
shall comprise of the smount of the initial mesnmement of the lease lability adjusted for any lonse pavments made a1 of before the commencement date less
auy lense incentives received. phus amy initial direct costs incurred and an estimaie of costs 10 be incurred by the leasce in disnmatling end removing the
undertyiuy asset or testoring the undedving &sset o slte on which it i located. The right-ofeuse sssets bs subsequently messured ot cost less any accumalated
depreciativn. accumulsied impuirmesd losses. i any and adjusted fir aiy temesswement of the lease liabiliny:. The rightoluse aeset is subsequently
deprecinted using the straight-line method from the commencemett date 1 the end of the Lewse téim. Rughn-of-use assets me tested for intpaument whenever
there it any indication that their camying smounts may 0ot be recoverable Impairment loss. if any. is recogmised in e staternent of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease labdiny o1 the present value of the letse payments tan are oot paid o fhie commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the knesest rate implicit m the bease, of that rate can be readily determined. If that rake cannot be readily detcomined. the
Compuny nses incremental bomowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar chameterisucs, the Company. 0n o lease by lonse basis, mary adopt either (he
mcrermestal bonowing rale specific 10 e lease or the neremental boowing mie for the portfolio as o whole. The fease poyments shall include fixed
[payments, variable lease payments. residual valoe gugrantees, excrcise price of a parchase sption where the Compuny is reisonably certuin 1o exercise that
nphundpmnnmufpu-linhlmnm'wrMﬂhluumul«uukmmwwmmrmmmmwlﬁﬂh
is ig the camyng smount fo reflect interest on the lesse liability, reducing the earnvang smount Io refiect the loase
mmnmnklndMhmmnmﬁmmmorwmﬂ:w:wbnnmmmmmm
payments The company recognises the amount of the se-oiensurement of lease labiliny due 10 modification a2 a0 adjustment fo the right-of-use assel and
stuterient of profit and loss depending wpon the nature of modification. Wikere the carmving amounit of the ngli-of-use asset is reduced 1o 220 and theee is a
firther reduction in the measuremen of the lease isbility, the Company recognises sm remmining anwoun! of e re-measurement in statement of profit and
loss.

The Company hiis elecied not o recognise right-of-use asscts and lemse liabifibes for shan-ierm lesses that have a lease term of 12 moths or loss and leases
of lowvaloe gssets The Company recognises the lease payments issociated with these lenses as an expenst on & sirsighi-line bases over the leese fe1m

Crttnont pdgomviies i determime the beae form

In determiniing the leuse term, mansgement considers #ll fbcts and crocumstances thaf creste sn ecunomic icentive W exercise = extension aption, of Wl
exercite & tenmination opticn. Extension optiond 1o periods after rermination options) src oah inchided in the lease term if he lease 13 reasonably comtmn o
be extended (o1 ot lemenated |

For leases of bufldings. the follawing facsars are narmully the most relevam:

Aa}If there are significant penalties in rerminate for nol extend), the Company 5 typecally reasonatily certain tu extersd for not ferminatc |

by I any leaschold improvements are expected to have » siynificant remaining value. the Company is typically reasomably centain b extend (or ot
temunake)

1€) Otherwise, the Company considers oihes factons wluding histarical lease duraions and e costs and busipess diseuption required 1o repiace 1he lersed
agset Most extensian oprions in building leases have not been included in the kase Habwlity. beesmse the Contpany could seplace the sscts without
significunt ¢ost or business disruption.

Emplovee benefite

(i) Shott-term eoployes benefits:

Employee benelits payable wholly walin rwelve manthe of recelving employee scrvives are classfied as shorttenn employee benefis These beefits
inclode salaries and wages. bunas and ex-grana The undisconnited mmemt of shor-term emplovee benefits expected 1o be paid in exchange for emplayes
services is recopnized a5 an expense for the related service rendered by employees

(H) Posi-employmwent bensficr:
Defined contributivn plans:
A defined ih 15 & post benafit plan under which ai entity pavs specaified coniibulions 10 @ sepaate ontiy and has no obligation o

pay fisther amouits ﬁwc-:uq—‘vf makes specfied monthly conributions towards emplovee provident fund and emplovees siste insvrance to &
Government sdministered scheme which 1 # defined commbution plan. The Compan’s contribution 1 iecogzed as an expense i the statement of profit
and Inus during the period in whch the emploves renders the related senvice

Defined benefit plany:
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The Campony”s gratwly benefit scheme 15 8 efined hevefit plan The Compam s et oblxgation o respect of o defined beniefit plad = calculated by
extimating the mmount of fisure benefit dae eophryees have eamed i retam for thete service i fhe cunent snd prion periods: thet benefin s discouted W
determine its prgsent value

The present value of the obiganon uder such benefit plan 1 detenmibed by indépendent qualified actuary using the Projected |nit Credit Method nhuch
| recoytizes cach penod of service tat yive rise to sdditional unit of employee benefir entitiement and meastires each unit separately 1 build up the fing!
ohligstinn

ket yiclds on Government Securivies a¢ a1 the balance cheel dates The Company classifies the gratuity #s current and nos-current based on the actizarial

waluation report

Actunrial gaing or losses are tecognised w other campeehensive income. Further. the profit or loss does not include an expected retumn on plan assets. Ingtead

met intenest rocognised in satemcon of profit ed foss is ealcaloted by applying the discount e usod to measure the defined benefi oMigation 1o the net

defined honefit Habiliny or ssser. The actusl retinn on the plan aseets above or helow the discoust rale i recognised 3¢ port of resmessurement of net defined
| lnabulity or assct theough other comprehensive incoine

‘ Re-meastuements comprising sctusnal g of hosses and refum on plan ssets texcluding amounts fucladed in nel interest on the et defined benefit
linbility ) are pot reclaznfied 1 sttement of profit and loss in subsequent periods

\
‘ The cbligation is measiwed a1 present values of estioated fature cash flows The discowsted rates used for determining the present valoe are based on the
\
|
|

‘ Changes in the present value of the defined bevefit obligation resulting from plan dimcnts of are recoghised A i the statrement

| of profit and foss as past servite cost ¥
The Company han e et waly such changes in legislation which hne bedn enacied upio the balance sticet date For the purpose of determining defined
benefit abligmion.
Compensated shveaces:
The employess can camy-forwird & portion of the unutilised scoried ubscnces and utilise it n futuce service penods, The Company records an

obligation for such compensated absences in the period i which the employee renders the sences that incremse this entiffement The obligation 1 messwed
‘ by independent qualified scosn using the Projecied Unit Credic Method
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Ind AS | - Presentution of Financisl Statements

The amendments require compames 0 dischose their matenal accounting pobickes sather than theit sigod i policies g policy
information. fogether with other -ﬁmq-mﬂdu&nﬂmmmﬂthﬂuhﬂmhrmﬁm mmn(gaun!m
Tinancial statements. The Company doet not expect s amendment 10 have sy sugnificant mpeet i (s finsncial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Inconue Taves

The amendments clanify how companics socount for deferred tax on fransoctions such as leases and d The

narowwed the scope of the recognition exempion in paragrapls 135 and 24 of lad AS 12 trecugnition exeniption) 5o that it no kenger spphies f rasctions
that. on imitwl tecognition, gve rise bo equal tixebie mnd deductible iemporny differences. The Coampany 8 evalnating the impact. if amy. in s fnancial
statemients

Ind AS 8~ Accounting Pelicies, Mhamlm--‘lxm

The ancedments will help entities to dis 1§ policies and g estunates. The defimtion ol o changs n accounting estimates
MMWMDMMWM Undet the new definition mmmﬁmmhmm
that wre subject o measuraent uncentaingy” Enities develop acconnting estimates if accounting policies require flems in fnancisl statements 1o be
measured {12 way that imvolves measucement uncertainte The Company does nat expect this amendment [o have any significant inopact in ity financial
statements

Ind AS 109 - Financial instraments

The Ministry of Corporate Aflnin ("MUA") vale notification dated 23 hluch 2002 has smsed an smendment & Ind AS 100 which clacifics fhe fiees b entity
shoold inctude when it applies the “10%:" iest in assessing whether w derecogmise a finamcil Tnahility. An entity includes anfy foes paid o received between
the entity (the barvower) and the keader. inchudng foes paid or reeeived by either the entiry or the lender on the other s behalfl The Company b cvaluating rhe
vequiternent of the sid amendment and its impact on these Minancial sarements
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions. unless otherwise stated)

4 Property, plant and equipment

Furniture and

Particulars Building Computers Office equipment Aitanes Vehicles Total
Gross carrying value '
Balance at | April 2022 (deemed cost) 16.27 9.28 ERE) 310 379 3557
Additions - 494 1.37 - - 6.31
Disposals o - ~(024) 11.63) (1.19} - (3.07)
Balance at 31 March 2023 16.27 13.97 2.87 1.90 3.79 38.81
I Accumulated depreciation
Balance st | April 2022 - - - - - -
Charge for the year 0.59 590 110 0.40 043 B42
Disposals s gl - e oo O (041 - 11.62)
Bal at 31 March 2023 0.59 5.90 10.10) (0.01) 0._!3‘_ 6.80
| Net carrying value as at 31 March 2023 15.68 8.07 1.98 1.9 336 3201
Gross carrying value
Balance as at 1 April 2023 1627 13.97 187 1.9 379 3881
Additions - 7.83 1.69 - - 9.52
Disposals = = - (0.98) (41 (3.13) (552)
Balance at 31 March 2024 16.27 21,80 3.58 0.49 0.66  42.81
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at | April 2023 0.59 590 (0.10) 0.01) 045 6.80
Charge for the period 0.59 487 1.12 032 022 712
Disposals = 0 3 : - -
Bal, At 31 March 2024 1.18 10.77 L2 0.31 0.65 1392
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2024 1509 11.03 2,56 0.18 0.01 2889
Note:

On wransition to Ind AS, the Company has clected 1o continue with the carrying value of all of its property. plant and equipment measured
as per the previous GAAP and use that carrving value as the d d cost of the property, plant and
Breakup of deemed cost as at 1 April 2022

Particulars Building |Comp ..lom« - £ ""“'"“ A |y ehicies| Total
Gross block 16.86 16.60] 148 3.53 4.17] 44.64
|Less: Accumulated depreciation 0.59) 7,33 0.34 043 038 907
|Deemed cost 16.27 9.28] 314 310] 379 3557

(This space has heen imtentionally lefi blank)




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
[All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions. unless otherwise stated)

6 Intangible assets

Particulars Software  Total
Gross carrying value

Balance at 1 April 2022 (deemed cost) 0.04 0.04
Additions - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 0.04 0.04

Accumulated amortisation
Balance at | April 2022 - -

Charge for the year 0.04 0.04
Balance at 31 March 2023 0.04 0.04
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2023 - -
Gross carrying value

Balance as at 1 April 2023 0.04 0.04
Additions - -
Ball at 31 March 2024 0.04 0.04
Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at | April 2023 0.04 0.04
Charge for the period : 2
Balance at 31 March 2024 0.04 0.04

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2024 - -

Naote:
1 On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible assets mensured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets,

Breakup of d dcostasat | April 2022

Particilars Software |  Total i
Gross block 030 030
Less: A lated amortisation o 0.26. 0.26
Deemed cost 0.04 0.04

(This space has been imtentionally lefi blank)




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Lumited
Neoles to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
AL amounts are o Indion Rupses i millions. anless otberwise siatedy

5 (a) Right-of-use misets

Particulars Buildings Total
G carrying valie - N
Balance 31 | April 2022 [LLELY 11956
Addirions == oy T Pe—— s 118
Balunce a1 31 March 2023 13074 130.74
Accumulated smortisation
Batunce ot | April 2022 . =
Ctwpafoctheyenr . — + a6 d6.d
31 ) S =l =S AR 46 b4
Net earrving value 53 a1 31 March 2623 Slile 2 L381}
Groas carrying valoe
Balance a3 at | Aprit 2023 13074 130M
Addinons -
Deletions o 1020} 10283
Balance 51 31 March 2024 - - e T
Arcumulsted amortisativn
Halance as ot | April 2023 do.46 4o
Claarge for the period 364 36.04
Delctions T 2 -
1.5

—
et oo o . SO SR T —

5 (b) Lease Bahilities
A The following is the mavement of lease Habilities

Particalurs As wt Asat
—— | |
Balance af the beginnimg of the year LEES] nsn
Additions . L]
Intevest expense fur the vear 536 730
E&;amlmm s BAS (4057
Balance vear 5184 B3.93
B The following is the hreak-up of lease lisbilitics:

P S Asut Asal Asat
P e S 31 March 2014 S1March 2023 !ﬂfﬁ*_‘iu_...
Currem lesse labilifies o 22 (£
Noncwrrent hease lahilines 4083 m [3LH
AP (e T . 1871

€ The table below provides detaily g b of lease Babilities on an ond i basis:

Aswt Asat Ax ut
g 3 March I 30 March2) ) Aprd2e
LLess than one year ny ns 957
Ome 10 five years EER L) 58 00 [T+
More than five years - z 0.81
PR 5806 7 . Y]

D Amownt recognized in stasement of profit and loas

For the vear ended For the yesc ended

Particulors 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Interest an lease Habilitics presented under finance cote 536 130

Depezciation on nght-ofuse assets presented under deprecistion and amartisation expensss 3604 4546
a7 2

Expensc relating 10 shori-term lemies sod low value nescts presented under other expenses
fl.7- {E—

For the ves ended 31 March 2024, the Company incuned expenses amoonting i Rs 2701 milkion 131 March 2023 Ra 24 74 million)

for short-term leases and henses of low-vatue sescts

For the yoar ended 31 March 2624, the wotel cash outflews fiw keases, including shon-teom lesees and kovevalue sssets amounted tu Ry

6426 million 131 March 2123 Rs 7461 millu)




Rakeha Fealth Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
EAN mounts pre in Inedian Ripees in millions. onless atherwise sated )

7 Noo-currest financial msets

7 (a) lnvestments

3 Mmoo At
K ] = 1 March 202431 Mareh 1023
1) Quoted
12} Equity shares desigoated wt fair value through other comprehensive
ncome (FYOCTIW
10383 (March 31 2023 92425 equiny shares of Rs. 6% 27 cach. fully i (A1)

paid wp of The New Icdin Assurance Compam Limied
(t) Investment in boods desigoated ot fair value through ofher

¢ Income (FYOCTER
9 70% ULP Pawer Cotporation Limited 3025 1017 1040
& 50% Stgie Bank of lndia Unsecuresd. Covernible Bond 817 857
7 35%. National Highway Authorisy OfF India 203 ) %42 10,56
i) Unquoted
Investment in dehentares al cast:
20000 |March 31, 2023 20,000) Nosconvatble debentises of ECL e 000

Finance Limited of Re. 1000.00 each, per unit

S04y

Ageregute book valie of quoted lmestisents and nawrket value thereol ou 3042
Agpregate value of piquoted investments 2009 20,00
® The Company desi these at equiry at FVOCT because The Compary intends to hold

Hiese cquity securitics for the long-term for strateghe purpioses
7 () Other Nnnncial assets

Tt —— 30 March 2024 31 March 2023

Cmriederead goend - ! nrccnnal

Secnrity deposits 154 1744

Baok deponits with matarry of more than tclve months e - 480,54
734 506,98

B Inconie tay axsels (net)
o T T

i irizupeid e M1 Dlacch 2624 31 March 2023

Advance tax, neét of rovision for b 5003 §7.45
S0 WK

9 Deferred tax assets (net)
- Aset Asal

e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Diferred lax assets

Provision for employee beefits T4 832

Allewsnee for expected credht losses on tiade ceceivables und other receivable 097 074

Temparary difference arisng from faer valoe sdjustment of financial a4t

assets sud labilities, net -

Lease Habilities 1308 22

Security deposil a3 nsf

Business Losses — 82 -

Totul deforred tax axsets %8 3087

Deferred tax lubiliies

Property. plant and equipnient and imtangiblc stieis
Temporry diffescnce arising fom fair valoe adjustment of fnancial
assets and labilitics. nel
asser
Tatal deferred tax lisbilinies

Deferved tax assets (aet)

#THein spwe bues Bevss aicatmondlly ol banky
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Rakaha Health lasurance TP Privare Limid
Nutes ta the femancial statements fo1 ihe yowr embed 51 March 2034
1N nsnnty s o B Rupees s ol s, iy sthrs s statid

13 Eamity share capital
Aiar Aant T
= M 304 3 Sk 30231 Apea e
Amcharhad:

400,001 gty st af R 11 coch el A0 LT T
HT. T}

dsswed mad Subscribed and Pabi-wp.
000 (0 eguay shares of RY 10 anch Pachsd o oy

1 Reconcilintion of the ousber of sharss sutstasding of (he beginuing s sf fhe o1 of fhe seporting preiod:

Fartisubary

Equiny shares

Balsnor ot the Insgunivng of the yae

Shagres lzued during v vear

Balancr at the wd of the reporiing peried year

b} Bights, prefercwer end resteiciions abtnched b fie equity dhares:

Vi Conmpuary has wnly an clons oF sharms fcrrod 0 w8 oty shares s ing o por vehoo of R 10~ awch Esch baidher of ety shaves i emtifind 15 ome vove pes shave \ uting rights
eaanod be certned w s pent of sl o whach e call o evher sem presety isyable hae mot bees pat Faitrs s pay 3y anovel called up on dhares mary led w focfre of
e

The disdend propoacid b the Boand of Darecmm o5 sbyect 55 th b - ety evcept in case of iniarim didered

MMnndwuhfm.uuiu-“_auhm-w-qdm-mmuhrm.nhmdnui-—u
seoants. The diatriboman will b peopartion s e surmbes of equify shares bekd by the sharholdes

i List af sharsholders hakding moce fhan $%% shares of o chass of shares

Aw Aswi
- 31 Mareh 2934 L MMarchien
""‘"’l T ———
Equity Share of 10 Each fally paid up
Nkl Naes . - 1200000
Nemsha Sanda . 1,209,000
e Naresh Trabus . - 1.3 005
Alpkh Avet inputocs TOA Sciwu plesd ]
) The cumpany of shares durang e perd of fivy botace shaet dine
o by, the capaal - b valos, safaqurd bunnes continain snd spsen the growth of the company The Cuspain detrrmine
e capast vegunteme hesnd on e el opersting Fas. kg teem wnd cthar Hratepe i plass. The fuadi
e cavh flow's generoied

TFowmares | Welwmi | %
| et ks | ot e prae

= 1Q 1300008 30 b1y A
R w -

= SRR R | =




13 Qcher equiny
S = - an T A
el z = M M0 0 M 2e A 2472

1n) Revsined enrnings
Batance 31 the beymmnng of the vear Adns? socay a2
Mus emeent davig the pevied! year
Toul camprabanan e income for the pennd yaae (LU a2 -
Do Paid T wen
Baniaace o the wud of the presadt year do1bd Hadr

(h) Gemeral reserve
Bataice 21 the begmming of Uie yoin 16 na TN
Balance ot the end of the period! year EET 751 AT
Tol (wsbi o Mgs s T
Natmry and purpose of wiher equity

[

Rrimined caruiogs
Wetsiord earnings at¢ the pr0fas that the Company has esmned ol date. bess wiry ransfers o panera! reserve o condls on oter drsribustunns il 1y dhareholders Funber @ s
echales the impact of raneanicanents of the deGasd benefs obligrboss, el of thy

(0} Gemeral pettrre
The reverve s created w accondiace with dhe provissen of Cespanies Azt 2013

Tl ot s I ikttt bl Maks




Raksha Health lasurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
AL smounts are o Indian Rupoes in milboas unbess stherwise stared|

14 Previslons (men-curreal)

Asul As at
e s M Marhina ey
Provisinn for employee bengfles:
Grosuity® IO - | B = |
9 3
* Refer Notw 27
15 Current financial liabilitics
15 (a) Trade payables
e Arat ) Asat
i S Marehad 3 March30s
Total outstanding dues of micro enterpnses and
small enterprises® a4 2
Total outstanding dues of creditars other thas
micro. small and redium enterprises g 2859 9
BB B
Retes Nate 32 for ageing details of wade payables
*Reler Note 39
15(5) Other financisl liabilities
W B T Aemt As
e . MMwoha 3
Emplayee benefits payables 3 1230
Other payables - =
10.66 3230
16 Contract linbilities
Asal Asat
titilen 31 March 2014 31 Mareh 2023
Contract liabilities 1%9.91 220.63
18931 n06
16 (a) Other current labilities
LS e Arat T
e MMM 3 Mareh20
Surtutory daes T3 3%
733 135
17 Provisions {curreat)
Asal Asal
Patdeanint 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Proviston for employee benefits:
Gratury® 208 604
Employer compensated absences - 518
“) 206 [IET]
Provision for Cluims Disallowed.
Halance st he beginning of the year 638 5
Provision created dunng the Year - -
Reversed |hilisstion during the year o LR ) —r'
(L] 1578 (5T}
A8 1781 [T%1]
* Refer Note 17

[This space is imteationally Igft Blank)




Raksha Uealth lnswrance TP\ Private Limited

Notes to the finnacial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
£ wmvouanis are in Imdiun Rupsees bn mifions. wnless otherinse statedi

I8 Revenwe from operntions

Far the vesr ended  For the year ended
Plxiivdar 31March 2034 31 March 2023
Revenne from contracts with custamers :
Third Porty Administratson (TPA) fees iladd HT 3
Health Maonagement Services - 118
Tatal 319.44 608.31

(A} Disaggregste of revenue information

In the following table, revenues from comtracts with custamers i3 disaggregated by major service lines and contract tvpe The
Company believes that this disaggragation best depicts how the mature. smount, timing sod uncertainty of our revenues ond
cashilowy are effected by industry, market end other economic factors.

Far the yenr ended  For the year ended
. — 31 March2024 31 March 2023
Major products/ service lines
Third Party Administration (TPA) fees 31944 07.13
Health Mansgenient Secvices s L18
519.44 608.31
Revenur by conirac iype
Services rendered over 3 point of time 51944 60713
Services rendered ut » poind of time - L8
SES— . U
Contract counterpartics
Others insurers 319.44 U8 31
19.44 €08.31
(A) Contract balances
(1) The following table provides imformation abowt receivables from contract with customers. re -
kit As at As st
b 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade and unbilled receivables 11362 143 37
Conuwet lsbilities 189.9) 220 62

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 day s

The contract lishilities relate ts deferred revenues i ¢, 10 be recognised in the future periods against the services 1o be provided

(i) i ch limbilities ng fhe year are as follows:
r ! Asat As ut
Movement fn contract liabilities:
Opening balance 15397 Wi
Revenue recognised that was included 1n the contract liability balance o1 the
beginning of the year (15397 (191713
Increases due 1o cash received. excluding smounts recognised as revenue
during the vesr 18991 153 97
Clasing balance [T 153.97
(B) Ti iva price all d o ng performance oblipstions

ﬂ:fdhuﬁ'ubhmhdamwmhwwdmmem!rdldlcpu-rmnmmmm|um

unsatisfied (or partislly satssfied ) at the reporting date

Particalars Asat ll“.Alll
Within 1 year 18991 15397
1-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
189.91 15397
N/, -




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financinl statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
51 amomis ave in Bikan Rupees in millions, widess otherwise shated)

19 Other ingamie —— ——
For the yenr ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Interest income on: S e ——
Bank deposits %035 278
Ineome tax refund 611 an
Investment 44 EE
Financial assets st amortised cost L4 153
Creditors/ provision no longer required wnitten back 024 0.29
Net gain on financial assets measured ot fair value thraugh profit or loss - 098
Profit an sale of current imvestment 504 -
Guin on termination of lease contracts 00s =
Miscellaneous income 10.50 187
56.17 3778
20 Employee benefits expense
For the vear ended  For the vear eaded
Paiceline - ) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salarics. bonus and allowances 296.88 EITEE)
Cantribution ro provident snd othes funds pO R[] 23
Uratuity 362 9.90
Employee compensuted uhsences 799 164
Stll wellore expenses 478 873
33537 360.56
21 Finance costs
For the year endedd  For the year eoded
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest on lease Habilities 536 730
Other interest () 024
6.08 1.8
22 Deprecistion nnd wmortisation expenses
For the year ended  For the year ended
TagHut . _ 31March2024 31 Mareh 2023
Deprecttion on property. plant snd cquipment ¢ refer note 4) T R45
Amartisation of right-of-use assets (refer note 5 (a)) 36.04 4646
4316 =N




Raksha Health Insurance TP\ Private Linsited
Notes fo the finuncial statements for the yeur ended 31 March 2024
EAN wrownts wre i Indlan Rupees in millions. wndess athervise stuted)

23 Other expenses - . —

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2623
Lab end Diagnostic expenses 2854 104
Soltware subscription charges 307 i
Legal and professional expenses 357y 2630
Repair und maintenance.others Isa 18.73
Postage and communicotion 264 2950

Net loss on financial assers mensured o fair vahse through profit or loss 018 B
Advertisement and business promation 034 (B0
Rent* 2701 HH
Printing and stationery 290 1mm
Insurance 061 0
Travelling and convevance 1192 1515
Power and fuel 782 891
Rates and taxes 041 121
Audit fees** 262 160
Provision for doubtful debls (nef) 387 22

Claim Processing Charges - -
Expenditure towards CSR activities 180 2638
Semingr.raining and conference expenses L k] 23
Bank charges oot w2
Loss on sale of fixed psset - 137

Miseellanevus expenzes 118 i
20019 kT

* Represents lease rentals for shurt term leases and leases of low-value assets.
** Auditors’ remuneration (excluding Goods and services tnx)

Particalary

For the year ended  For the vear ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2013

Statutory audit fees

160

162

160




Raksha Health Insuramce TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statemonts for the yesr ended 31 March 2024
LW amonnts are in tndicm Bopees w milfions. unlexs atherveise sed)

24 Summary of discontinucd operation
The financial performance and cash Rows for discoetinued operations

() 0 p of investigation income ( 11C)
| During the Financial year 2023-24. the Compsny hes decided 1o i the business operations p B 10 pre-policy business which are mainly gereranng from pec-
policy healih check up The Company has disclosed the discontinuation of pre-policy business as as per the of Ind AS 105 * Non cutrent
asset held for sale und Disoontinued operation”
- Aswt Aswi
il 31 March 2024 31 Viureh 2023
Trade receivables e ) X SSEa & [35 52}
Unbilled receivables 30 159
Trade payahles 147 077
Provision 430 s.as
i . o e For the year ended For the year ended
Fasitaie 31 March 2024 31 Marsh 2023
Revemue
Revenue from operutions. s RO 2333
Total income 1952 I8
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Salaries. Bonus and Allowoncey Ea) 705
Other expenses 1459 2327
Tots] expenses T ) A =35 3032
Profi/ (lass) before tax fram u discontinued operation (2.28) (6.97)
Tax eredit / (expense)
Related to pre-tex profiti loss) - = 1.76
- 176
Profit/ tas from a i T‘L‘ﬁ_‘ CE10)
B Net cash Nows attributable 1o the discontinued operations -
Fuor the year ended For the year ended
g ) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net cash generated (used) in From operaring activities - 1A} 1228 69n
Net cash generated (used) in investing activities - (8) - z
Net cash generated (used) in financing activities =4 - =
Nel increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+() {1.28) (6.97)
For the year cnded For the year ended
Pactiendary 31 March 2624 31 Maxch 2023
Profit” (loss) afber tax from 3 d operation of card business M) 697T)
Profit (loss) after tax from n di d operation of pre-policy checkup business i s
1228 .97)
Taxcredit fexpense) . A RN SRR L7
——l o _I812




Ralksha Health Leswrance TPA Private Lisvited
Nates to the fimancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2004
1Al smounts ae in Indeow Rupecs in midions unkess otherwise gated)
13 Tax expense
(2] Amnunts recopnised in statement of profit snd los

For the vear ended For e year ended i

P 3 March 204 31 March 2023
Current tax A 1830
Adjusiment of L telotng 1o earlier vears (L1317 [
Deferred tax 1 credit) charge (34.88) 2
Tax expemse for the year () 1

(bl Amounts recognised in other comprehensne mcnme (O T)

Partical For the year ended 31 March 2024 _ 2
Before iy T besefit Affter tax
ltzms that will not be rechuasified sobsequently (o staterment of the profit snd loss

e compeehenisive ucomne 037 10.06) Y 031
037 10.06) 31
Particalan ——l T N
- LT T EESE— )

Tsems that will net be reclssified subsequentiy to statenwent of the profic and loss. 1
Ochir comproheitsive income 3.5 (L1 242
38 (L10) EX)

(b) Reewneiliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended For the year ended

Parficutars

Profit (hoss) before tan for the vear - e ' & | qu.n- B

Sraory rake _ 31 81T

T umng Comppmy’s stulutors mte [FI (LK

Tax effect of:

T impact on nua-dedatible oxpeases 242

Tax an long-term capital gam 140 .

Adjunment of tax reksting bo earfser vears 1084) (X7

Onher stems - doe bo priot year enmor L .

Deferred ta asset on corvent year tavable loss mey -

Onhars. 2099 238
2307 §TY

(This pace has bern Intenitomaly icft blank)
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Raksha Health Insurance TPA Privace Limited
Netes 10 the financinl statenents far the year ended 31 March 2004
AR amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions. unbess atherame sated i

17 Employee benefits
The Company contribtes 1o the followiag past-emplin ment plans

a) Defined contribution plns:
The contributions paid/ poyable 1o Emplover Providens Fund. Employeex State Insurance Scheme Emplovees Pension Sehemes and ather fands are detcrmined under the relevam
appiored sohemos and o siatutes and sre recopnised a3 expense i the staement of profit and loss during the peniod in which the employee renders the related service There are no
farther obligations other than the contriutinns pavable o the appraved trusts! approprate asthoritics.

The Company makes i ik a5 o sperrfied of emgs salacics. in respect of qualiiving employees lwands emploves provident fund and employecs
state ipsurance, which are defined contribution plass. The Company has na obligativn other than o make the specificd i The ihutions are charged o the statement of
profit and loss as they acerue mmmu-mwwmwnd—mwmmﬁmumhmhlf;amiltwﬂl.‘-l
aggregaied to Rs. 20,10 miflion (31 Marsh 2023: Re. 21 33 million snd 01 April 2022 Rs. 20,82 million 1

b) Defined benefit plans:
The Compary has 2 defined benefit gratwity plan governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972 The plan entitles an emplovee who has rendered a1 least five vears of contiauous
senvice W recene |5 dove slury ﬁ:rm:r_-mph«d;wdmucmmrmm«ldmmh‘d-huxumm“ﬂrﬂmﬂuh-mﬂmﬂhy
the employee concemed. The Company’s lability is ectuacially determined (using the Prajected Unit Credit method) 21 the end of each vear Actuarial gaims | losses) are recognised
undes other comprehonsive income in the stotement of profit and loss
Budununnuﬂ&lulnuimol-nlndhil'nuwu,hmmmmhﬂhdhm«mﬁlmmhhm-umﬁmm

As st As ot As ut
Tadtennrt AT = 31 March 2024 31 Minreh 2023 1 April 2022
Dititied benetit obiigation 198 TTRS M85
Fair salucof planagns - a3 -
Net defined benefit obligution 27.9% 2788 485
Corrent Hisbilities 206 684 mn
Noo-current Habilitics 303 un 208

i Reconciiaion of the net defived benefit ability
Thie following table ghows & firoe th Bg b 1o the closing balances for pet defined bemefit liability and its components

Reconciliation of present vahue of defined beoefit shligation

As i Asar Asat
Lt i 3 Mawch20M 31 Mareh 203 1 Aprit 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 785 T 1) 19.00
Benefits paid 85 1324 1299)
Past service cost . 332 <
Curent service cost 3.5 472 LE
Imberest vost 209 188 142
Actuarial (guins) Josses recognised In other comprehensive income
Changes in financial amumptions ns2 12.03) M
Expericnce adjusment [1ML]) 11,631 .
Balance ot the end of the vear I 1748 A8
Espense ised in statement of profit and loss
Particalar
Current service cost = -
Past service cost
Inerest cost
Totsl
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As at 31 March 2034 -
Purticulsrs Unbilied  Neot Doe Lows tham & & Mouths - | Vesr 42 Vears 23 Venrs  Merethand  Totul
_Meni JOStS .

Undiggutod trade recesvable - Conmdored Ciood 2 - 4R (5 (NEY5S | o
Uilbanaiasd cible - which have i wredst risk . - ool EFTY - . AT

" e sucebvabla < Cradith g . . . : = 5 = -
Mspuied trade naivbils - Consiskered Liood . - - = = = -

& o . ) 0 cxodt risk . = - - . - - -
Diapuated irade recervalile - Crodit wopaned - - - - = - - s
Tetal r ™I - i 241 316 - - 11T4%
Less Loss ailowane 5 &7
Tetal 0 g
rmmmmumma—mmuam
As st 31 March 2023
Farticnlars Unbilted  Not Due Lesthan 6 & Mamtha = | Veur 121 Yems 2-3Years  Mlore than § Toead
Muonths _yeami

indiputed irade teveivabile - Comsadered God nes? . 12w - = - - 433
Vo P RRe P et risk . . o 151 142 . 298
Vindispuied trade reveisable - Ctedit impaired . . " - . A -
Disputed 8 d . - S . = . .
Drgmited teade recevable - which hove significon morcass i credi e . . - < . =
H -h-‘u&-cmw“ - = - - - - - -
Taral ——= 11047 . 1w 153 14 - : |%_.
L Wi o dobifl rocubies JELHT
Total = T
memwo--ﬁ.wmwh—m—n—‘m
Asatll un e e——— e s o PR e
Particulars Unbilled  Not Due Lessihan® & Mentha-| Veur -2 Years ) Veuen  More than J Tatal
— L] —
Vindisputed trade roceivible - Comsidored Good e . nor 1or - - - [
Umdigputed trade recenalble - which hawe sgaificont iercase in crodt sk - - .90 - - . - L
Vinduspuired trade roceivable - Credit inpaired - - . . - - g
Disjruted brude secervabie - Considered Uood - - . - - . .
s ol i s avrifowind oo by ok = = - = - - - -
Disputed irsde recetvable - Crodit tmirod = o = E a - . =
Total my . 0 - . - law
Less- allowanes ior doubtful receivables 13,
Totad [ i
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Rskain Wenbih Insmrnmer TPA Prisate Limited
Notes 1o the finnncial statoments for the aine moaths cnded 31 \arch 2024
110 arrwsts ary wn frdean Rupurs ma el cdess othermoe matod)

A3 Finst thwe adopton of Ind AS
Ax stwed m Note 3, thase e the Compry's (st (sl smemcnts preparcd m accocdane woh Ind AS For the 1 ended | March U2 he Comgumy had propased s

finmsrual satements n sceonlance with Companies { Arcountmg Standwds) Rudes, 201, sctfied nder Sectiors 133 of the Act and ofher rebevant peosinras of the Act [P ous
GAAP)

The wootiay pulivies set s 9 Node § have been apphed w1 prepanng thess fnancil Baemens (o the year ended 11 Narch 2023 wchading the comparstne sfonnmion for the
veat enided 31 March 2022 and the openeng Ind AN balance sheet on the dus of ieansitien ie 1 Apol X101 (Tromsteon deiv’)
I proporegg 3 Ind AS balmce shewt 25 2 | Aprd M1, el presming She comparstry infumestson for the vesr ended 51 Nands 3077 the Copany b sdssstnsd amounes

u—-lm—h-mmm-mmmﬁ-m-mhﬁ-ﬂnuﬁ.s-wmammﬁurm'\
Tmnancaal posateon and fnencul petormemce o lned heranoer

I preporwy dhene fnancrsl e Compan, bas spohed '] e b, CatpUeE

A Optiwsal exrmplions 5 siled:
lnd AS 101 allows eptaal froai e applicmnn of ercain der Ind AS for wansave from e gres . GAAP
The Compans has availed the following

(1) Deesned cost far property. pinat snd equipment sad other intangible smets
lin sevedinge waih ind AS 101 hhh“hwﬂmmﬁ-ﬁdnm.huwm-n\ Apnd 2031 mesmaed o pes the
Frevins GAAP and e dus carming vaha e the dermed oot of the propenty. plant snd equmerens o co the dwe o nimaien

Mendutsry exceptisns
e scoentisees wath lod AS 10), e Compar bus spypleed followngy mandeor, eveeptars fiv Ezmrwm Eon fhe Previos GAAP

Lls .

b wccordance st Ind AS 101, & Compars has Socrmred ta de: of fnatis) hased o fix d that exud o the date of Mauon \lemrreren
ot fu us becn don e except where fhe mme i snpracrcoile

{0 Estimntes

I scenedaace with Ind AN 101, the Campany's eximates see comistent with those made ander Prowous GAAP and where neoeusry. appropone adiminents are wade o eamying
anbur i 30 the date of waminon

s por ind AS 101, the Componn u tegared w mabe coman raticntes it wee w0t rgpared under Moy GAAP, whach should be mads 5o seflect condions fan cyuted o e
dme of tramen (for preparmy opeaeg lod A5 balawe Yaret o7 2 the end of fhe compusstive sered (for prevereng esmporsti e afenmst e 5 pet e AS)

Further estomases comadened m poegarsomn: of the frmenl mmrmon thal were ior reqarnd uder fhe Pres o GAAP o

i Fimacr, vl e o P \ wnd Lows {FVTPL) and ox Fawr Vatie Swovgh Other Compeetsine Insonse IFUOCT)
financial e d nd

iia} derervrmgion of the dicourted vikee for finsncn] watnemcits camed & smortised oes

s zpoace Bir Bewm imtcmmmamaily lest ek |




Rakaha Heslid fnscrance 174 Fromer Lissied
Xotes 12 The finncial satements for the nine months snded J) March 3004
AN s e i Pon b Fopes ol ans oo cobemi i ol

M Fuent s sdoption of Ind AS fomtmand)

w
Noae Arssut an pev Ind A% Armannt o oy
am 30 a7
240 - e s (LS
081 o e
) i oo 0
. @ @
im 43 My -
18T ELINT) e
s an L
ola7 LAt ws
i il (1) [
24 oin 22
P T TS ) BT
o LIE
00 004 0w
Tws 3 (LI 5] .08
ne SN
2 . N e
i 1ids TS B
[1E7) [T T
Frrunctal fabilitie
Banowings T4 s -
Liae bakibitien 3 . nm ]
Tiade pevabia
socn! rutdambing S of micrm e sed nall Co ke - -
el sstabyoding dues o credmoy other thas macms sTEpaases and s enlerproe ey L3+
Okt finasial fatulities
Ol v Fadifiies
Proninons. 4
Tetal current b bivties
Tatel habuies
Total equim snd kabibuies
“Thoe v yom eshemand 2 jomn cvibcai dfimed wider hvsions 1 of Seheduls 1T 10 ihe Companies Aqt. 3013




HRubaba leslih fagurance TPA Private Limied
Notes @ the fanacial iniements for (hr wimg smonshs ended 31 Vharch 2014
U e o o e Mgt 0 sl are. wehne s s b

0 Recomcilintive of bainace theet ma ot 30 Sasch 1831
Partientan

Aswn

New-cwerent wuely

Propern. plant o eguiproent dia e (]
Bigh-olese suseti & - FIE (28]
Intangivle Bsels Ay 1004y %
Fionaest i seveud -

Ot fbmanc:al assens 3 [T
Incname . gmas (net) was
Ot mime-com ceml dsscts -
Tated womcwrrent nisen .
Correm wssets
Finsncial asees

Teade veceiabled fam2

Cash and cash equivalums 0N

Oxket finarmsinl assets ' 525
[ 138
Total enrremt musets Ty - T I YR
Totad asens a4
Lqurty mmd Lishililins
Eguiny whare copinl L R (e L
Odar wquiey lwt 48 Sns o
Toand equity [T [Ty alas
Limbsiliries
Nam-cnrrent liabibities
Fimansial lisbilifics

Lease balibes - sin s

@ a4 (&) 0

Total mancuarrend kskdities it _whad _nn
Corrend habrlbies
Fraancal hsbidmes

1 rnsy atabiney H 13 4 2

Towde parywbibes
feaa! ot amling et of s emtenpises b pmal crIYiNG . - v

! ding i alf amicyjuises em e ne

Onher financisl liskfiies - nw» o
Onher aerem Habilirier s [LLE ) Do
Provimons . B 3 — A4 21
Total curres abiities [ 1)

L™ 2 “Hsein
Tasal eqem sad bbb

*The pvious 162 wuribers have borm regrouped echassel bo st the e esestation crvievis defined mder Do raioe 1 of Scheduie 1 10 e Conpaaies Act, 2011

SE
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Raksha Henlth huarsace TEA Frivate Lisited
Natew o (ha imaneisl itslements o the nine maaiha eaded 31 Varch 3624
A ity e e o R v o sl and < il

) Brcanciation of tota] cumprohentivs inceme fur the yeos ended 31 March 021 e . L )
‘arnculen Nete Amouni if per Tnd AS Amcant w per
= eyt - Prevlapt GAAP!  siljstments g AS -
Revermie from oparavons g [ILEE) wil oe
b (nemame ] 3] -8 ] nn
Toaal e ome = . EEEC oy 2 i

Ochar comprebiptive mcoms s 24y
Tetat comprehemive koc e for the rear LX) [IE0 —an

*The previous yem wsiies have bess reprowped  recaed o meet the preseniinon criteris Sefimed under Dinision 1o Sebedule 1] 10 the Companies Act. 2015

) satad e ubty 24wt 31 290 wad 1 1 . gy
Puciiculary Aam Raw
——n i TR S S — == 31 March 28033 0 Apeil 2azt
Totad equity ander Fresimes GAAF e e
Adjmiments o actonnt of.

Fale vahustion of seeuriey depusies ) an
Tod AS 116 - "Leases® o nm @5
Tutal acjmanmenta TR rer)
Total vy 3 per fndl A5 p— 171 Ty
o Reconclliation of prefic
Particadary For yeur cuded
R IIEEE————— 31 Sares 3021
Frof afier tax wnder Previows GAAF [
Adjusiments wm accennt o
Fr enbirmon of st Sevasts i
Ind AS | 1 - “Losmed” i asy
Eomplox v benefi sy
Crmam e Incorme . of peoile pad lots) 443
Puelid afier tan s reparicd wader Ind AS

Odhar compiehansive iocome. low ) (ner of oo
Totsl compronentive imovme 51 reporsed wader Ind AS
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Rakshs Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Noles to the fioancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
1Al amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions. unkess stherwise stated)

36 Corporate Social Respansibility (¢ SR)
Whete the company covened under section 135 of the 2013 Act The fellovwmg shall be daclosed with regard 1o CSR acinities-

Farticalars ——— For the year eaded For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 Msreh 2023 J
131 amount required (0 be spent by the company during the year . ) I__4 2
(b) amount of expenditure incurmed I &0 208
c) shonfall at the end of the vear ) il 3 mlg
{td) ratal of previous years shontall e} i fl p
te) reason for shortfnil A . - 4 T
{UF) magure of CSR acuvines The area for CSRIThe area for CSR)
el & Hvelibood]
. L and]
vocational skils by wav{vocational skills by way
of providing training in a/of providing training in o
wide armay of functionaliwide aray of

areas w0 persons  atlarels 0 persoms o
vanous Jovalions of the/various locations of the

Company acrom India. | Company scress Indis

|

37 Segmest reporting
mtnm'-h—m-wm-mm.mmbnmwdrnmmwwuwmwwmn within
Segment”

hld-"o\orordmm.m(’m'hsmkmmmmmunimhdmmmnwmudud 108 “Operating

35 Related purty disclosures
fA)  Names of the related parties and description of relationship

{i) Holding C' N Medi Assist Insprance TPA Privaie Limited (with effect from (wed) 31
August 2023)

() Liitimate Holding Compam: Medi Assist Healihcare Services Lintited (w.e.f 31 August 2023

(ni} Entity under significant infuence Raksha Universal Private Limited

Rty Nanda Insurance Services Privaie Limited
Sun & Moon Travels India Private Limited
Sharak Healthcare Privae Limited

Jasmine Realty Ventures Private | svited
Fscons Kubota Limited

1101} Key Management Personnel Nuasha Nards (KMF)
Pawan Kumar Bhalla (KMP)
Nakhil Nanda (Relative of KMP)
Shiv Bhalla (Relative of KMP)

(B} Summary of transactions with the above retated parfies are ns follows ;

For the year ended N For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2012
Services Received / Goads Purchased

Raisha Unmersal Private Limited 2135 1Lo4 -
Sun & Moon Travels India Private Limued 050 095 .
Jasmu Realty Ventures Privote Lamited 446 425 -
Nikhil Nanda ™ loo .
Nitasha Nands 1005 1188 -
Shiv Bhalla 232 248 -
Medi Assist Insurance TPA Privase Limited LT . -
Renumeration

Pawan Kumar Bhalla 136 K3 o

Issee of share capital

Medi Assist Insurance TPA Privare Limited A0 00

Al
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Retated party disclosures (continued)
The Comgany has the following smonnt due from/ to related parties -

Parsicat Asmt Aswt Asat
R s S S S — . ¥ 3N March2023 1Apri2ex
Payables/ (Recehables) from! to resated party

Escorts Kubota Linited - - 029
Raksha Universal Privase Limned 004 - 002
Shiv Bhally . alo el
Jasmine Reahty Ventures Private Limited . inary o4
Med) Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited (0 B8y - a
Security Depusit paid

Nikhil Nanda 023 158 15K
Nitasha Nanda 060 27 227
Shiv Bhalla - 0.23 on
Jasmine Realty Ventures Private Limued 036 08s 086
Micre, small and medium eaicrprise

The disclosiee in respect of the amounts pavable o Micro and Small Enterprises as i 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 01 April 2022 has been made in the financial
statements based on information received and available with the Company The Company does ot have any dues to mucro and small entorprises a5 9t 31 March 2074,
31 March 2073 sad 01 Agril 2022

The principal arnount and the interest dise thereon remainimg unpaid to any supplier a1 the end of cach sccounting vear

As ot Asat As st
e M Marchlen 3 March33 ) aprazmr
The principal smount and the mierest due ihereon remaining anpaid 1o amy supplicr at
the end of each accaunting vear
Principal o4 152 @10
Imerest - - %
The smount af interest paid by the buyer in termi of section 14 of the Micro. Small and - - -
M-hulhmmmummsqmmamammm
misde 10 the suppher bevond the appormicd don during esch vear
The amount of mierest due and payeble for the period of delay in making pavment - . -
fwhick have been paid bot bevond the appuinied day dormg the year) but without
adding the mierest specified under the Micro Small and Medium Faterprises
Development Act, 2000
The amount of interems accrued and remaining unpaid ot the end of each accounting - -
yesi
The amount of further interest remaiming due and pavable even in the succeeding years
mlluﬂ&ﬁuhmmhvm-_ﬁﬂdlummlm.
for the purpose of b under section 23 af the - 3 -
mewwmwmnnehp-mw
€ lisbilities and
Asmt Asnt Asat

I March202d S Merch2033  1Aprt2022
-Bank Gurantees Executed
I favor of Insurer for performance of temlerent of clyime® a1 50 97 350 K2 50
~Income Tax Department [AY 2020-21) . - 1060
=Iincome Tax Depariment (AY 2017-15) - - 547
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Additional regulatory quired under Schedule 111

Detadls of benami property held

No procezdings have been initiated on or are pending against the Compeny for holding benami properts under the Benami Transacuons (Prohibition) Acr 1988 (4% of
198%) ond Rules made thereunder

Borrowing secured against current nawets
The Compuny s 0o barrowings (rem [iman il mstiutions on the basis of security of current assets

Witful defaglter

The Company has not been declared as 3 “Wilful Defauker’ hy any bank or finuncial institution (53 defined under (he Companies Act. 2013) of consortium thereof in
dance with the on wilful defisuhers issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Rel p with struck off comp

The Company has no transactions with the companies struck ofl under Companies AcL 2013 or Companics Act, 1956

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company hos complied with the number of isvers prescribed under clause (87 ) of section ¥ of the Act resd with the Uompanies (Resinction on number of Lavers)
Rules. 2017

Compl, with npp of
The Company' has nat entered inte any approved scheme of srungement which hag sn Atcounting mpact in current or previous financel vesr

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premism

The Company' has not advanced or loaned or invesied funds to any other personis) ot entityfies). wnchding foreign entities (ln i with the that
the Intermedion shall.
{=) directly or indirecth fend o1 invest i other persons o entilies identified " ony manner by or on behalf of the Company (Lilumate Beneficiaries) or

5] provide any guaraniee, security or the like 1o or on behal? of the ulimate henefic mres

The Company has not recoived am fund from am person or any entity. including foreign entities ( Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
of otherwise) that the Company shall

{a} dwectly or indircctly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified i any manner whatsoever by 3 or on behalf of the Funding Pasty (Ulenate Benefivianest.
of

fb) peovide any guaranive, security or the like on behalf of the Lihimate Beneficiaties

derectly or indirectly lend or mvest in other persons o entitics identificd in am manwer whatsaever by or on behall of the Funding Pamy (| /ifimate Beneficiarics) or
provide any' guarantee. securiny of the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiries

Undisclosed income
ﬂmsuhwnuumrdmdordudmdumdumnhummmmmm In the fax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961, that has not been
recorded in the baoks of' secount

Detalls of cry plo currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded o¢ invesied m crypio curvency of virtual curtency durmg the curment ar previous year

Valuation of property, plant und equipment, intangible asset and Iy estnent property

The(‘nmm‘hnsnurmlhmlism-.phnmdcpinnm(lmhdm;ﬁghwmaulmmwbkmumMdnm;hmmwprmwm The
Campan does not have mvestment property

The Company docs ol havw amv charges or satisfaction which is vet 1o be registered with Registrar of Companies bevond the statuton penod.
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Notex to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
LAN smounts ore in Indian Rupees in millions. uniess otherwise stoted)

43 Events sfer the reporting date

hw(‘mm'mmwﬂwnmmm:nummm&mwm-:uhtihﬁm‘dmumavaﬂwkmk
mmmwmm-emmmumﬂmmmmmmrmummm

44 The Code on Sacial Security 2020

The Code on Social Sevurity 2020 (the Code ) relating to employee benefits. during the employment and postemployment. bas received Presidential assent on
September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India n.m.mu.m-wmmammmmmkmmmﬂmncmn
November 13, 2020 Hunnw,lrcﬁmwmfmnhhhﬂwd-muwm&uytllnh:mﬁfgdnndrﬂdﬁ'm-‘wwimpmmm:m

yet issved

mmmi‘mwwmilumwhdm"mryn(upmxmvﬂhnmmmm information forms an integrul part of

these financial statements

As per our report of even date smtached

Parner
von 25089676 BRBLE C 8289
Place: Faridabad

Date: 13 May 2024

For and oo behall of the Board of Directors
Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
CIN: US3199DL2002PTC ) 13925

Wholetime Director Director Company Secremn
DIN: 00312478 DIN: 08700476 MNo A37579
Place: Faridabad Place Bengalury Place: Bengalury
Date 13 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024 Dote. 13 May 2024



